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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
[ü] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2007

or

[    ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File No. 000-52710

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 13-2614959
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)
One Wall Street

New York, New York 10286

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant�s telephone number, including area code�(212) 495-1784

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes  ü     No      
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
�accelerated filer and large accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer [ü] Accelerated filer [    ] Non-accelerated filer [    ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes          No  ü 

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer�s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Class

Outstanding as of

July 31, 2007

      Common Stock, $.01 par value 1,137,850,691
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Introduction

On July 1, 2007, The Bank of New York Company, Inc. (�The Bank of New York�) and Mellon Financial Corporation (�Mellon�) merged into The
Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (�The Bank of New York Mellon� or �BNY Mellon�), with BNY Mellon being the surviving entity. The
merger was accounted for as a purchase of Mellon for accounting and financial reporting purposes. As a result, the historical financial statements
of the combined company presented in this Form 10-Q are the historical financial statements of The Bank of New York. In this document,
references to �our,� �we,� �us,� the �company,� the �Company,� the �Corporation� and similar terms for periods prior to July 1, 2007 refer to The Bank of
New York, and references to �our,� �we,� �us,� the �company,� the �Company,� the �Corporation� and similar terms for periods on and after July 1, 2007
refer to BNY Mellon.

The combined company is a leading provider of financial services for institutions, corporations and high-net-worth individuals, providing
superior asset management and wealth management, asset servicing, issuer services, clearing and execution services and treasury services
through a world wide client focused team. It has more than $20 trillion in assets under custody and administration and more than $1 trillion in
assets under management, and it services $10 trillion in outstanding debt.

The combined company has annual revenues of more than $13 billion, with approximately 30% derived from asset servicing, 40% from issuer
services, clearing and execution services and treasury services, and 30% from asset and wealth management. By the end of 2008, BNY Mellon is
expected to generate over $1 billion of tangible capital per quarter. We will be well positioned to capitalize on global growth trends, including
the evolution of emerging markets, the increasing need for more complex financial products and services, and the increasingly global need for
people to save and invest for retirement. Almost a third of our combined revenue is derived internationally.

Financial results for Mellon are included in the �Merger with Mellon� section of this report. See pages 54 to 65. In addition, The Bank of New
York Mellon Corporation will file a Form 8-K/A, which will include Mellon�s financial statements and notes for the six month periods ended
June 30, 2007 and 2006, and a pro forma combined balance sheet for The Bank of New York Mellon as of June 30, 2007 and pro forma
combined income statements for The Bank of New York Mellon for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and for the full year 2006. The
combined financial statements for The Bank of New York Mellon will include the pro forma impact of purchase accounting adjustments
resulting from the merger.

The merger transaction resulted in The Bank of New York shareholders receiving .9434 shares of The Bank of New York Mellon common stock
for each share of The Bank of New York common stock outstanding on the closing date of the merger. All earnings per share and common share
outstanding amounts, in this Form 10-Q, have been restated to reflect this exchange ratio. See page 69 for additional information.

2     The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (unaudited)

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

(dollar amounts in millions, except per share amounts

and unless otherwise noted)

Quarter ended Six months ended
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007
June 30,

2006
June 30,

2007
June 30,

2006
Reported results
Net income $ 445 $ 434 $ 448 $ 879 $ 870
Basic EPS (a) 0.63 0.61 0.63 1.24 1.21
Diluted EPS (a) 0.62 0.60 0.62 1.22 1.20
Continuing operations

Fee and other revenue $ 1,580 $ 1,475 $ 1,370 $ 3,055 $ 2,635
Net interest revenue 452 427 358 879 697
Total revenue $ 2,032 $ 1,902 $ 1,728 $ 3,934 $ 3,332

EPS from continuing operations (a):
Basic $ 0.63 $ 0.62 $ 0.55 $ 1.25 $ 1.05
Diluted 0.62 0.61 0.54 1.23 1.03
Diluted excluding merger and integration costs (b) 0.66 0.62 0.54 1.28 1.03

Return on average tangible common equity 37.27% 39.20% 30.76% 38.20% 29.35%
Return on average tangible common equity excluding merger
and integration costs (b) 39.81 40.09 30.76 39.95 29.35
Return on average common equity 15.54 15.70 15.85 15.62 15.30
Return on average common equity excluding merger and
integration costs (b) 16.65 16.06 15.85 16.36 15.30

Fee and other revenue as a percentage of total revenue (FTE) 78% 77% 79% 78% 79%
Annualized fee and other revenue per employee (in
thousands) (based on average headcount) $ 274 $ 259 $ 275 $ 267 $ 266

Non-U.S.:
Percent of revenue (FTE) 32% 30% 30% 31% 32%
Percent of pre-tax income (FTE) excluding merger and
integrations costs (b) 30 24 32 27 25

Pre-tax operating margin (FTE) 32% 34% 34% 33% 34%
Pre-tax operating margin (FTE) excluding merger and
integration costs (b) 36% 36% 35% 36% 34%
Net interest margin (FTE) 2.01% 2.18% 1.95% 2.10% 1.95%
Net interest revenue (FTE) $ 454 $ 429 $ 365 $ 883 $ 711
Net income � from continuing operations 448 437 391 885 751

Assets under custody and administration (in trillions) $ 14.9 $ 13.8 $ 12.0 $ 14.9 $ 12.0
Equity securities 32% 32% 32% 32% 32%
Fixed income securities 68 68 68 68 68
Cross-border assets (in trillions) $ 6.2 $ 5.0 $ 4.1 $ 6.2 $ 4.1

Assets under management (in billions):
Equity securities $ 43 $ 41 $ 36 $ 43 $ 36
Fixed income securities 22 22 21 22 21
Alternative investments 36 33 28 36 28
Liquid assets 41 34 31 41 31
Foreign exchange overlay 11 12 11 11 11
Total assets under management $ 153 $ 142 $ 127 $ 153 $ 127

Securities lending cash collateral assets (in billions) $ 365 $ 375 $ 356 $ 365 $ 356

Average common shares and equivalents outstanding (in
thousands) (a)
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Basic 709,783 708,245 713,451 709,019 717,014
Diluted 722,661 719,893 721,430 721,285 725,613

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation    3
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (unaudited) (continued)

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

(dollar amounts in millions, except per share amounts and

unless otherwise noted)

Quarter ended Six months ended
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007
June 30,

2006
June 30,

2007
June 30,

2006
Capital ratios
Tier I capital ratio (e) 8.09% 8.43% 7.96% 8.09% 7.96%
Total (Tier I plus Tier II capital ratio) (e) 12.07 12.81 12.06 12.07 12.06
Adjusted tangible shareholders� equity to assets ratio(d)(e) 4.53 5.47 5.19 4.53 5.19

Return on average assets 1.57% 1.73% 1.54% 1.65% 1.52%
Return on average assets excluding merger and integration costs (b) 1.68 1.78 1.54 1.73 1.52
Return on average tangible assets 1.74 1.93 1.66 1.83 1.63
Return on average tangible assets excluding merger and
integration costs (b) 1.86 1.98 1.66 1.91 1.63

Selected average balances
Interest-earning assets $ 90,557 $ 79,075 $ 75,380 $ 84,847 $ 73,219
Total assets 114,278 101,975 96,395 108,217 94,124
Interest-bearing deposits 53,610 43,862 43,015 48,763 42,144
Noninterest-bearing deposits 15,334 14,903 10,869 15,120 10,496
Shareholders� equity 11,566 11,277 9,882 11,422 9,885

Credit loss provision and net charge-offs
Total provisions $ (15) $ (15) $ (1) $ (30) $ (1)
Total net recoveries 5 3 7 8 10

Loans
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans 0.73% 0.76% 0.95% 0.73% 0.95%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of non-margin loans 0.85 0.87 1.10 0.85 1.10
Total allowance for credit losses as a percent of total loans 1.08 1.11 1.35 1.08 1.35
Total allowance for credit losses as a percent of non-margin loans 1.25 1.28 1.57 1.25 1.57

Nonperforming assets
Total nonperforming assets $ 27 $ 29 $ 32 $ 27 $ 32
Nonperforming assets ratio 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%

Other
Employees 23,200 23,100 20,000 23,200 20,000
Book value per common share (a) $ 16.50 $ 16.11 $ 13.97 $ 16.50 $ 13.97
Period-end shares outstanding (in thousands) (a) 717,000 715,403 719,607 717,000 719,607

Dividends per share (a) $ 0.23 $ 0.23 $ 0.22 $ 0.47 $ 0.45
Dividend yield 2.12% 2.17% 2.61% 2.12% 2.61%
Closing common stock price per share (a) $ 43.93 $ 42.98 $ 34.13 $ 43.93 $ 34.13
Market capitalization (in billions) 31.5 30.8 24.6 31.5 24.6
(a) Earnings per share and all other share-related data has been recalculated in post-merger share terms. See page 69 for additional

information.
(b) Calculated excluding pre-tax charges associated with merger and integration expenses ($47 million in the second quarter of 2007 and

$15 million in the first quarter of 2007). The pre-tax operating margin for all periods presented also excludes intangible amortization.
(c) Amounts have been reclassified. See discussion on page 20.
(d) Includes deferred tax liabilities of $149 million for the second quarter of 2007, $154 million for the first quarter of 2007, $20 million for

the second quarter of 2006, $149 million for the first six months of 2007 and $20 million for the first six months of 2006 related to non-tax
deductible identifiable intangible assets.

(e) Includes discontinued operations.

4     The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

BNY Mellon�s actual results of future operations may differ from those estimated or anticipated in certain forward-looking statements contained
herein for reasons which are discussed below and under the heading �Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors.� When used in this report
words such as �estimate,� �forecast,� �project,� �anticipate,� �confident,� �target,� �expect,� �intend,� �continue,� �seek,� �believe,� �plan,� �goal,� �could,� �should,� �may,�
�will,� �strategy,� �rapidly evolving financial markets,� �synergies,� �opportunities,� �well-positioned,� �trends,� �pro forma� and words of similar meaning,
signify forward-looking statements in addition to statements specifically identified as forward-looking statements. In addition, certain business
terms used in this document are defined in The Bank of New York�s 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

Our businesses

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (NYSE: BK) is a global leader in providing a comprehensive array of services that enable
institutions and individuals to move and manage their financial assets in more than 100 markets worldwide. We have a long tradition of
collaborating with clients to deliver innovative solutions through our core competencies: securities servicing, asset management, wealth
management, and treasury management. Our extensive global client base includes a broad range of leading financial institutions, corporations,
government entities, endowments and foundations. Our principal subsidiary, The Bank of New York (the �Bank�), founded in 1784, is the oldest
bank in the United States and has consistently played a prominent role in the evolution of financial markets worldwide.

Our strategy over the past decade has been to focus on highly scalable, fee-based securities servicing and fiduciary businesses, and we have
achieved top three market share in most of our major product lines. We distinguish ourselves competitively by offering one of the industry�s
broadest array of products and services around the investment lifecycle. These include:

� advisory and asset management services to support the investment decision;

� custody, securities lending, accounting, and administrative services for investment portfolios;

� sophisticated risk and performance measurement tools for analyzing portfolios;

� clearance and settlement capabilities and trade and foreign exchange execution; and

� services for issuers of both equity and debt securities.
By providing integrated solutions for clients� needs, we strive to be the preferred partner in helping our clients succeed in the world�s rapidly
evolving financial markets.

Our long-term financial objectives include:

� sustaining top-line growth by expanding client relationships and winning new ones; and

� achieving positive operating leverage over an economic cycle.
To achieve our long-term objectives, we have grown both through internal reinvestment as well as execution of strategic acquisitions to expand
product offerings and increase market share in our scale businesses. Internal reinvestment occurs through increased technology spending,
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staffing levels, marketing/branding initiatives, quality programs, and product development. We consistently invest in technology to improve the
breadth and quality of our product offerings, and to increase economies of scale. Our acquisitions over the past ten years have been almost
exclusively in our securities servicing and asset management areas.

We have taken recent strategic actions that have significantly transformed us.

� In July 2007 we:

� Completed the merger of The Bank of New York and Mellon, a global leader in asset management and securities servicing.

� Announced an agreement to buy out the remaining 50% interest in the ABN AMRO Mellon joint venture. This

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation    5
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

transaction is expected to close in late third quarter or early fourth quarter of 2007.

� In 2006 we:

� Sold our retail and regional middle market banking businesses (�Retail Business�)

� Purchased the corporate trust business (the �Acquired Corporate Trust Business�) of JPMorgan Chase & Co. (�JPMorgan Chase�)

� Formed a joint venture known as BNY ConvergEx Group, LLC, a trade execution and investment technology firm (�BNY ConvergEx�)
As part of the transformation to a leading securities servicing provider, we have also de-emphasized or exited several of our slower growth
traditional banking businesses over the past decade. Our more significant actions include selling our credit card business in 1997 and our
factoring business in 1999, significantly reducing non-financial corporate credit exposures, and most recently, the sale of our Retail Business. To
the extent these actions generated capital, the capital has been reallocated to our higher-growth businesses or used to repurchase shares.

Our business model is well positioned to benefit from a number of long-term secular trends. These include:

� growth of worldwide financial assets,

� globalization of investment activity,

� structural market changes, and

� increased outsourcing.
These trends benefit us by driving higher levels of financial asset trading volume and other transactional activity, as well as higher asset price
levels and growth in client assets, all factors by which we price our services. In addition, international markets offer excellent growth
opportunities.

How we reported results

All information in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is reported on a continuing operations basis, unless otherwise noted. For a description of
discontinued operations, see Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Second quarter 2007 highlights

We reported second quarter net income of $445 million and diluted earnings per share of 62 cents, and income from continuing operations of
$448 million and diluted earnings per share of 62 cents. This compares to net income of $448 million, or 62 cents of diluted earnings per share,
and income from continuing operations of $391 million, or 54 cents of diluted earnings per share, in the second quarter of 2006. The second
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quarter of 2007 included merger and integration expenses ($47 million) that amounted to approximately four cents per share. Excluding this
amount, diluted earnings per share from continuing operations in the second quarter of 2007 was 66 cents per share.

Year-to-date net income was $879 million, or $1.22 of diluted earnings per share, compared to $870 million, or $1.20 of diluted earnings per
share for the same period in 2006. Year-to-date income from continuing operations was $885 million, or $1.23 of diluted earnings per share
compared with $751 million, or $1.03 of diluted earnings per share in 2006.

Performance highlights for the quarter include:

� Asset servicing revenue grew 17% over the second quarter of 2006, a record quarterly level reflecting increased transaction volumes and
organic growth across all business products;

� Issuer services results were strong on a sequential quarter basis reflecting seasonal factors;

� Asset and wealth management fees were up 25% over the second quarter of 2006 reflecting organic growth;

� Performance fees were up driven by Ivy Asset Management (�Ivy�) and Alcentra;

� Good expense discipline drove positive operating leverage (excluding merger and integration expense); and

� Asset quality remained excellent.

6     The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

In the second quarter of 2007, we continued our strong momentum in asset management and securities servicing. The results in these businesses
demonstrate our success in maintaining focus on our clients while successfully closing the merger with Mellon. We are now executing the
disciplined, thoughtful integration plan that will support our goals for new business development and merger synergies.

Fee and other revenue

Fee and other revenue

(in millions unless otherwise noted) 2Q07 1Q07 2Q06

2Q07

vs.

1Q07

2Q07

vs.

2Q06

Year-to-date YTD07

vs.

YTD062007 2006
Securities servicing fees:
Asset servicing $ 427 $ 393 $ 365 9% 17% $ 820 $ 700 17%
Issuer services 367 319 207 15 77 686 361 90
Clearing and execution services 291 282 337 3 (14) 573 679 (16)
Total securities servicing fees 1,085 994 909 9 19 2,079 1,740 19
Asset and wealth management fees 168 151 134 11 25 319 260 23
Performance fees 21 14 7 50 200 35 14 150
Foreign exchange and other trading
activities 117 127 128 (8) (9) 244 239 2
Financing-related fees 61 52 64 17 (5) 113 127 (11)
Treasury services 55 50 52 10 6 105 103 2
Distribution and servicing 2 2 1 �  100 4 2 100
Investment income 39 36 38 8 3 75 74 1
Securities gains (losses) (2) 2 3 N/M N/M �  (1) N/M
Other (a) 34 47 34 (28) �  81 77 5
Total fee and other revenue $ 1,580 $ 1,475 $ 1,370 7% 15% $ 3,055 $ 2,635 16%
Fee and other revenue as a percentage of
total revenue (FTE) 78% 77% 79% 1% (1)% 78% 79% (1)%
Market value of assets under management
at period-end (in billions) $ 153 $ 142 $ 127 8% 20% $ 153 $ 127 20%
Market value of assets under custody or
administration at period-end (in trillions) $ 14.9 $ 13.8 $ 12.0 8% 24% $ 14.9 $ 12.0 24%
(a) Includes net economic value payments of $13 million and $25 million for the second and first quarters of 2007 and $38 million for

the six months ended June 30, 2007.
N/M - Not meaningful.

Fee and other revenue

The results of many of our businesses are influenced by client activities that vary by quarter. For instance, we experience seasonal increases in
securities lending and depositary receipts reflecting European dividend distribution during the second quarter of the year, and to a lesser extent,
in the fourth quarter of the year. Also, consistent with an overall decline in securities industry activity in the summer, we typically experience a
seasonal decline in the third quarter.

The increase in fee and other revenue versus the year-ago quarter primarily reflects growth in securities servicing, asset and wealth management
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

and performance fees. The first and second quarters of 2007 reflect our new business mix including higher revenue from the Acquired Corporate
Trust Business partially offset by the BNY ConvergEx transaction. The sequential-quarter increase in fee and other revenue primarily reflects
growth in securities servicing fees, asset and wealth management fees, performance fees and financing-related fees.

Securities servicing fees

Securities servicing fees increased over the second quarter of 2006 reflecting strong growth in asset servicing and issuer services, partially offset
by a decrease in clearing and execution services fees. Securities servicing fees were up sequentially reflecting growth in issuer services, asset
servicing and clearing and execution services. See �Institutional Services Segment� in �Business Segments� for additional details.

Asset and wealth management fees

Asset and wealth management fees increased from the second quarter of 2006 primarily due to strong performance in alternative investments,
the introduction of a new fund at Urdang, as well as solid performance at Alcentra driven by new product introductions. Total assets under
management for asset and wealth management were $153 billion at June 30, 2007, up from $127 billion at June 30, 2006 and $142 billion at
March 31, 2007.

Performance fees

Performance fees were up from a year-ago quarter and sequential quarter reflecting organic growth and strong results at our alternative asset
management subsidiaries, Ivy, Alcentra and Urdang.

Foreign exchange and other trading activities

Foreign exchange and other trading activities declined by $11 million, or 9%, to $117 million, and decreased 8% (unannualized) compared with
the first quarter of 2007. The decline compared to both the second quarter of 2006 and first quarter of 2007 was due to lower other trading
revenue reflecting the recognition of hedging costs associated with synthetic fuel tax credit investments and losses on swaps that no longer
qualify as hedges. Foreign exchange results were down from the second quarter of 2006 reflecting lower market volatility. Foreign exchange
revenue increased on a sequential quarter basis consistent with higher market volatility and volumes.

Financing-related fees

Financing-related fees decreased from a year-ago quarter reflecting a lower level of credit-related activities consistent with our strategic
direction. Finance-related fees include capital markets and investment banking fees, loan commitment fees and credit-related trade fees. On a
sequential quarter basis, financing-related fees increased reflecting higher underwriting fees.

Treasury services

Treasury services fees increased from the first quarter of 2007 and second quarter of 2006 reflecting higher client volume and net new business
in the global payment business. Treasury services includes fees related to funds transfer, cash management, and liquidity management.

Investment income

Investment income in the quarter reflected continued strong returns on investments in the sponsor fund portfolio. Venture capital income was
$18 million in the second quarter of 2007, up from $17 million in the first quarter of 2007 and down from $23 million in the second quarter of
2006. On a year-to-date basis, venture capital income was $36 million, down from $46 million a year ago. Investment income includes the gains
and losses on private equity investments, income from insurance contracts, and lease residual gains and losses.

Securities gains (losses)
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The $2 million securities loss for the quarter reflects a loss on the call of $117 million of Philippine Bonds.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Other revenue

Other revenue is comprised of asset-related gains, equity investment income, net economic value payments, and other transactions. Asset-related
gains include loan and real estate dispositions. Equity investment income primarily reflects our proportionate share of the income from our
investment in Wing Hang Bank Limited. Other transactions primarily includes low income housing, other investments and various
miscellaneous revenues. The breakdown among these four categories is shown in the following table:

Other revenue Quarter ended
Six months
ended

(in millions)
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007
June 30,

2006
June 30,

2007
June 30,

2006
Asset-related gains $ 5 $ 4 $ 18 $ 9 $ 52
Equity investment income 12 13 14 25 25
Net economic value payments 13 25 � 38 �
Other 4 5 2 9 �
Other revenue $ 34 $ 47 $ 34 $ 81 $ 77
Other revenue decreased sequentially reflecting lower net economic value payments. The second quarter and first quarter of 2007 included
$13 million and $25 million, respectively, of net economic value payments primarily for European, Middle Eastern and Asian Corporate Trust
deposits that did not transfer to our balance sheet until May 21, 2007.

Year-to-date 2007 compared with year-to-date 2006

Fee and other revenue for the first six months of 2007 increased $420 million, or 16%, compared with the first six months of 2006. This increase
primarily reflects the Acquired Corporate Trust Business, higher asset servicing revenue driven by custody, fund services, and broker dealer
services, as well as higher wealth management fees reflecting organic growth, partially offset by the BNY ConvergEx transaction.

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation    9
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Net interest revenue

Net interest revenue

(dollar amounts in millions)

2Q07 2Q07 Year-to-date YTD07

2Q07 1Q07 2Q06

vs.

1Q07

vs.

2Q06 2007 2006

vs.

YTD06
Net interest revenue $ 452 $ 427 $ 358 6% 26% $ 879 $ 697 26%
Tax equivalent adjustment (a) 2 2 7 N/M N/M 4 14 N/M
Net interest revenue (FTE) $ 454 $ 429 $ 365 6% 24% $ 883 $ 711 24%

Net interest margin 2.01% 2.18% 1.95% (17)bp 6bp 2.10% 1.95% 15 bp
(a) Selected items included in net interest revenue have been adjusted to a fully tax equivalent (�FTE�) basis. To calculate the tax equivalent

revenues and profit or loss, we adjust tax-exempt revenues and the income or loss from such tax-exempt revenues to show these items as if
they were taxable, applying an assumed tax rate of 35%. We believe that this presentation provides comparability of net interest revenue
arising from both taxable and tax-exempt sources and is consistent with industry standards.

N/M - Not meaningful.

bp - basis points.

Net interest revenue on an FTE basis totaled $454 million in the second quarter of 2007, an increase of $89 million from the second quarter of
2006 and $25 million from the first quarter of 2007. Net interest margin was 2.01% in the second quarter of 2007, compared with 1.95% in the
second quarter of 2006 and 2.18% in the first quarter of 2007.

The majority of the increase in net interest revenue from both prior periods reflects new business and higher client volumes. In addition, net
interest revenue, in the second quarter of 2007, benefited by approximately $11 million from the May 21, 2007 conversion of the European
operations of the Acquired Corporate Trust Business, which added approximately $10 billion in non-U.S. deposits. We received net economic
value payments on these deposits, which are recorded in Other Revenue, of $13 million for the second quarter of 2007 and $25 million for the
first quarter of 2007. On a pro forma basis, including these deposits for the full quarter and the associated net economic value payments, the net
interest margin would have been approximately 1.95%.

For the six months ended June 30, 2007, net interest revenue on an FTE basis was $883 million compared with $711 million in 2006, while the
net interest margin was 2.10% in the first half of 2007 and 1.95% in the first half of 2006. The increase in the first six months of 2007 compared
with the first six months of 2006 resulted from the factors mentioned above, as well as higher deposit balances associated with the Acquired
Corporate Trust Business.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Noninterest expense

Noninterest expense 2Q07

vs.

2Q07

vs.

YTD07

vs.Year-to-date
(in millions) 2Q07 1Q07 2Q06 1Q07 2Q06 2007 2006 YTD06
Staff:
Compensation $ 472 $ 459 $ 394 3% 20% $ 931 $ 779 20%
Incentives 171 147 162 16 6 318 281 13
Employee benefits 109 114 100 (4) 9 223 200 12
Total staff 752 720 656 4 15 1,472 1,260 17
Professional, legal and other purchased
services 132 130 85 2 55 262 167 57
Distribution and servicing 4 4 4 � � 8 8 �
Net occupancy 81 79 68 3 19 160 136 18
Furniture and equipment 54 50 48 8 13 104 99 5
Software 57 54 53 6 8 111 108 3
Business development 37 30 28 23 32 67 51 31
Sub-custodian expenses 42 34 36 24 17 76 70 9
Clearing and execution 44 37 59 19 (25) 81 109 (26)
Communications 23 19 22 21 5 42 48 (13)
Other 87 72 64 21 36 159 123 29
Subtotal 1,313 1,229 1,123 7 17 2,542 2,179 17
Amortization of intangible assets 29 28 15 4 93 57 28 N/M
Merger and integration expense:
The Bank of New York Mellon 35 4 � N/M N/M 39 � N/M
Acquired Corporate Trust Business 12 11 � N/M N/M 23 � N/M
Total noninterest expense $ 1,389 $ 1,272 $ 1,138 9% 22% $ 2,661 $ 2,207 21%
Total staff expense as a percentage of
total revenue (FTE) 37% 38% 38% 37% 38%
Employees at period-end 23,200 23,100 20,000 �% 16% 23,200 20,000 16%
N/M - Not meaningful.

Noninterest expense was up compared with the second quarter of 2006 and first quarter of 2007. The purchase of the Acquired Corporate Trust
Business and the remaining 50% of the AIB/BNY Securities Servicing (Ireland) Ltd. (�AIB/BNY�) joint venture, along with the disposition of
certain execution businesses in the BNY ConvergEx transaction, significantly impacted comparisons of the second quarter of 2007 to the second
quarter of 2006. The net impact of these transactions was to increase staff expense, net occupancy, business development, professional, legal and
other purchased services, amortization of intangibles, and other expense. The BNY ConvergEx transaction also resulted in lower clearing
expenses. The sequential-quarter increase reflects higher salaries, incentive compensation, as well as merger and integration expenses related to
the merger transaction with Mellon.

Staff expense

Given the company�s mix of fee-based businesses, which are staffed primarily with high quality professionals, staff expense comprised
approximately 54% of total noninterest expense in the second quarter of 2007.

Staff expense is comprised of:
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� compensation expense, which includes;

� base salary expense, primarily driven by headcount;

� the cost of temporary help and overtime; and

� severance expense;
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

� incentive expense, which includes:

� additional compensation earned under a wide range of sales commission plans and incentive plans designed to reward a combination
of individual, business unit and corporate performance versus goals; and

� stock option expense; and

� employee benefit expense, primarily medical benefits, payroll taxes, pension and other retirement benefits.
The increase in staff expense reflects a net increase in headcount associated with the Acquired Corporate Trust Business and the consolidation of
AIB/BNY, partially offset by the BNY ConvergEx transaction.

Non-staff expense

Non-staff expenses include certain expenses that vary with the levels of business activity and levels of expensed business investments, fixed
infrastructure costs, and expenses associated with corporate activities related to technology, compliance, productivity initiatives and corporate
development.

Non-staff expenses increased $155 million, or 32%, compared with the second quarter of 2006 reflecting:

� Higher professional, legal and other purchased services expenses resulting from higher legal expense and consulting fees.

� An increase in net occupancy primarily resulting from the conversion of AIB/BNY to a wholly-owned subsidiary.

� Transition services expense and other costs related to the Acquired Corporate Trust Business of $11 million in the current quarter and
$21 million in the first quarter of 2007, recorded in other expense.

� Merger and integration expense in the second quarter of 2007 included $12 million related to the Acquired Corporate Trust Business and
$35 million related to the merger with Mellon. The merger and integration expenses associated with the Mellon merger include amounts
for personnel-related ($17 million), integration/conversion ($15 million), and one-time costs ($3 million).

Year-to-date 2007 compared with year-to-date 2006

Noninterest expense in the first six months of 2007 increased $454 million, or 21%, compared with the first six months of 2006. The increase
primarily reflects the same factors impacting the quarterly results.

Income taxes
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The effective tax rate for the second quarter of 2007 was 31.9%, compared to 33.8% in the second quarter of 2006 and 32.2% in the first quarter
of 2007. The lower effective rate in the second quarter of 2007 compared to the prior year was attributable to higher foreign tax credit benefits in
the second quarter of 2007. On a year-to-date basis, the effective tax rate was 32.1% compared with 33.3% in the first six months of 2006.

The projected effective tax rate for the second half of 2007 ranges between 33.8% and 34.2%. The increase in the effective tax rate is primarily
attributable to the adverse effect of the merger in 2007 on New York state and local income taxes.

Our effective tax rate benefits by the amount of synthetic fuel tax credits (Section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code) we will receive. These
credits relate to investments that produce alternative fuel from coal byproducts and are impacted by the price of oil.

To manage our exposure in 2007 to the risk of an increase in oil prices that could reduce synthetic fuel tax credits, we entered into an option
contract covering a specified number of barrels of oil that settles at the end of 2007. The option contract economically hedges a portion of our
projected 2007 synthetic fuel tax credit benefit. The contract does not qualify for hedge accounting and, as a result, changes in the fair value of
the option are recorded in trading income.

12     The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

At June 30, 2007, we assumed a $70 average price per barrel after June 30, 2007 to estimate the remainder of 2007 benefit from synthetic fuel
credits. We believe our assumption for the second half of 2007 is reasonable given the historic seasonal patterns for oil prices. To the extent the
average oil price differs from this assumption, we do not expect a material effect on earnings in the third and fourth quarters of 2007.

Credit loss provision and net charge-offs

Quarter ended Six months ended

(in millions)
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007
June 30,

2006
June 30,

2007
June 30,

2006
Provision $ (15) $ (15) $ (1) $ (30) $ (1)

Net (charge-offs)/recoveries:
Commercial $ 5 $ 3 $ 2 $ 8 $ 3
Foreign � � 4 � 6
Other � � 1 � 1
Total net (charge-offs)/recoveries $ 5 $ 3 $ 7 $ 8 $ 10
The provision for credit losses for the second quarter of 2007 was a credit of $15 million, compared with a credit of $1 million in the second
quarter of 2006 and a credit of $15 million in the first quarter of 2007, reflecting the favorable disposition of an aircraft lease and continuing
excellent credit quality. We recorded a net recovery of $5 million in the second quarter of 2007, compared with a net recovery of $7 million in
the second quarter of 2006 and a net recovery of $3 million in the first quarter of 2007. The second quarter and first quarter of 2007 include
$5 million and $7 million, respectively, of recoveries related to leased aircraft that were sold. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, the
provision for credit losses was a credit of $30 million compared with a credit of $1 million in the first half of 2006. We recorded a net recovery
of $8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 compared with a net recovery of $10 million in the first six months of 2006.

Business segments

We have an internal information system that produces performance data for our three business segments along product and service lines.

Business Segments Accounting Principles

Our segment data has been determined on an internal management basis of accounting, rather than the generally accepted accounting principles
used for consolidated financial reporting. These measurement principles are designed so that reported results of the segments will track their
economic performance. Segment results are subject to restatement whenever improvements are made in the measurement principles or when
organizational changes are made. Net interest revenue differs from the amounts shown in the Consolidated Income Statement because amounts
presented in the Business Segments are on a fully taxable equivalent basis (FTE).

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation    13
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

We continuously update segment information for changes that occur in the management of our businesses. In the first and second quarters of
2007, in connection with the merger with Mellon, business segment reporting was realigned to reflect the planned new business structure of the
combined company. In addition, several allocation methodologies were also revised to achieve greater harmonization with Mellon�s
methodologies. All prior periods have been restated to reflect these revisions. It is anticipated that remaining allocation methodologies will be
harmonized during the third quarter of 2007.

We now provide segment data for three segments with the Asset and Wealth Management Segment and Institutional Services Segment being
further divided into sector groupings. These segments are shown below:

� Asset and Wealth Management Segment

� Asset Management sector

� Wealth Management sector

� Institutional Services Segment

� Asset Servicing sector

� Clearing and Execution Services sector

� Issuer Services sector

� Treasury Services sector

� Other Segment
On Oct. 1, 2006, we sold substantially all of the assets of our Retail Business.

Specific segment accounting principles employed include:

� Revenue amounts reflect fee revenue generated by each segment.

� Revenues and expenses associated with specific client bases are included in those segments. For example, foreign exchange activity
associated with clients using custody products is allocated to the Asset Servicing sector within the Institutional Services Segment (which
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includes our custody operations).

� Balance sheet assets and liabilities and their related income or expense are specifically assigned to each segment. Previously, segments
with a net liability position would have also been allocated assets from the securities portfolio.

� Net interest revenue is allocated to segments based on the yields on the assets and liabilities generated by each segment. We employ a
funds transfer pricing system that matches funds with the specific assets and liabilities of each segment based on their interest sensitivity
and maturity characteristics.

� The measure of revenues and profit or loss by a segment has been adjusted to present segment data on a tax equivalent basis.

� The provision for credit losses is allocated to segments based on changes in each segment�s credit risk during the period. Previously, the
provision for credit losses was based on management�s judgment as to average credit losses that would have been incurred in the operations
of the segment over a credit cycle of a period of years.

� Support and other indirect expenses are allocated to segments based on internally-developed methodologies.

� Goodwill and intangibles are reflected within individual business segments.

� The business segment information is reported on a continuing operations basis for all periods presented.

� The operations of the Acquired Corporate Trust Business are included only from Oct. 1, 2006, the date on which it was acquired.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Market indexes 2Q07

vs.

YTD07

vs.

YTD06

Year-to-date

2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07 2Q07 1Q07 2007 2006
S&P 500 Index (a) 1,270 1,336 1,418 1,421 1,503 6% 1,503 1,270 18%
NASDAQ Composite Index (a) 2,172 2,258 2,415 2,422 2,603 7 2,603 2,172 20
Lehman Brothers Aggregate
Bondsm Index (a) 213.2 220.0 226.6 230.8 227.9 (1) 227.9 213.2 7
MSCI EAFE® Index (a) 1,822.9 1,885.3 2,074.5 2,147.5 2,262.2 5 2,262.2 1,822.9 24
NYSE Volume (in billions) 121.6 108.8 114.4 123.8 127.7 3 251.5 235.3 7
NASDAQ Volume (in billions) 134.2 114.6 121.5 131.4 134.0 2 265.4 265.0 �
(a) Period end.
The results of many of our sectors are influenced by client activities that vary by quarter. For instance, we experience seasonal increases in
securities lending and depositary receipts reflecting the European dividend distribution season during the second quarter of the year, and to a
lesser extent, in the fourth quarter of the year. Also, consistent with an overall decline in securities industry activity in the summer, we typically
experience a seasonal decline in the third quarter.

The second quarter of 2007 was impacted by a seasonal pick up in corporate actions that increased revenue related to depositary receipts and
securities lending. Non-program equity trading volumes were down 6% sequentially and up 5% year-over-year. In addition, average daily U.S.
fixed-income trading volume was up 3% sequentially and 10% year-over-year. Total debt issuance decreased 5% sequentially and increased
15% year-over-year. The issuance of global collateralized debt obligations was up 13% versus the second quarter of 2006.

As of June 30, 2007, assets under custody and administration rose to $14.9 trillion, from $12.0 trillion at June 30, 2006 and $13.8 trillion at
March 31, 2007. The increase in assets under custody and administration from June 30, 2006 primarily reflects rising asset prices, growth in the
custody business and the impact of the Acquired Corporate Trust Business. Equity securities comprised 32% of the assets under custody and
administration at June 30, 2007, and fixed-income securities were 68%, both unchanged from June 30, 2006. Assets under custody and
administration at June 30, 2007 consisted of assets related to the custody, mutual funds, and corporate trust businesses of $10.7 trillion,
broker-dealer services assets of $2.4 trillion, and all other assets of $1.8 trillion.

The consolidating schedules on the following page show the contribution of the company�s sectors to its overall profitability.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

For the quarter ended
June 30, 2007
(in millions,
presented on
an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset
&

Wealth
Management

Segment
Asset

Servicing
Issuer

Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 122 $ 52 $ 174 $ 520 $ 390 $ 320 $ 145 $ 1,375 $ 31 $ 1,580
Net interest revenue 4 15 19 155 128 63 93 439 (4) 454
Total revenue 126 67 193 675 518 383 238 1,814 27 2,034
Provision for credit
losses � � � � � � (7) (7) (8) (15)
Noninterest expense 72 56 128 473 253 299 129 1,154 107 1,389
Income before taxes $ 54 $ 11 $ 65 $ 202 $ 265 $ 84 $ 116 $ 667 $ (72) $ 660
Pre-tax operating
margin (a) 43% 16% 34% 30% 51% 22% 49% 37% N/M 32%
Average assets $ 1,387 $ 1,487 $ 2,874 $ 12,146 $ 5,104 $ 16,267 $ 16,966 $ 50,483 $ 60,921 $ 114,278(b)
Excluding intangible
amortization:
Noninterest expense $ 68 $ 56 $ 124 $ 471 $ 236 $ 293 $ 129 $ 1,129 $ 107 $ 1,360
Income before taxes 58 11 69 204 282 90 116 692 (72) 689
Pre-tax operating
margin (a) 46% 16% 36% 30% 54% 23% 49% 38% N/M 34%

For the quarter ended
March 31, 2007
(in millions,

presented on
an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset
&

Wealth
Management

Segment
Asset

Servicing
Issuer

Services

Clearing
&

Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 101 $ 51 $ 152 $ 476 $ 356 $ 308 $ 132 $ 1,272 $ 51 $ 1,475
Net interest revenue 6 16 22 132 110 61 97 400 7 429
Total revenue 107 67 174 608 466 369 229 1,672 58 1,904
Provision for credit
losses � � � � � � (3) (3) (12) (15)
Noninterest expense 67 55 122 442 251 276 130 1,099 51 1,272
Income before taxes $ 40 $ 12 $ 52 $ 166 $ 215 $ 93 $ 102 $ 576 $ 19 $ 647
Pre-tax operating
margin (a) 37% 18% 30% 27% 46% 25% 45% 34% N/M 34%
Average assets $ 1,387 $ 1,448 $ 2,835 $ 10,610 $ 4,235 $ 16,363 $ 17,003 $ 48,211 $ 50,929 $ 101,975(b)
Excluding intangible
amortization:
Noninterest expense $ 63 $ 55 $ 118 $ 441 $ 234 $ 270 $ 130 $ 1,075 $ 51 $ 1,244
Income before taxes 44 12 56 167 232 99 102 600 19 675
Pre-tax operating
margin (a) 41% 18% 32% 27% 50% 27% 45% 36% N/M 35%
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

For the quarter ended
Dec. 31, 2006

(in millions,
presented on
an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset
&

Wealth
Management

Segment
Asset

Servicing
Issuer

Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 109 $ 49 $ 158 $ 424 $ 371 $ 296 $ 132 $ 1,223 $ 60 $ 1,441
Net interest revenue 7 15 22 136 107 63 101 407 23 452
Total revenue 116 64 180 560 478 359 233 1,630 83 1,893
Provision for credit
losses � � � � (1) 2 (7) (6) (9) (15)
Noninterest expense 74 53 127 422 246 262 129 1,059 99 1,285
Income before taxes $ 42 $ 11 $ 53 $ 138 $ 233 $ 95 $ 111 $ 577 $ (7) $ 623
Pre-tax operating margin
(a) 36% 17% 29% 25% 49% 26% 48% 35% N/M 33%
Average assets $ 1,226 $ 1,481 $ 2,707 $ 9,453 $ 3,988 $ 14,825 $ 16,615 $ 44,881 $ 54,499 $ 102,087(b)
Excluding intangible
amortization:
Noninterest expense $ 70 $ 53 $ 123 $ 414 $ 230 $ 256 $ 129 $ 1,029 $ 99 $ 1,251
Income before taxes 46 11 57 146 249 101 111 607 (7) 657
Pre-tax operating margin
(a) 40% 17% 32% 26% 52% 28% 48% 37% N/M 35%

For the quarter ended
Sept. 30, 2006
(in millions,
presented on
an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset
&

Wealth
Management

Segment
Asset

Servicing
Issuer

Services

Clearing
&

Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 84 $ 47 $ 131 $ 427 $ 205 $ 328 $ 141 $ 1,101 $ 31 $ 1,263
Net interest revenue 3 16 19 119 49 60 98 326 13 358
Total revenue 87 63 150 546 254 388 239 1,427 44 1,621
Provision for credit
losses � � � � 1 � (3) (2) (2) (4)
Noninterest expense 58 52 110 411 127 309 126 973 113 1,196
Income before taxes $ 29 $ 11 $ 40 $ 135 $ 126 $ 79 $ 116 $ 456 $ (67) $ 429
Pre-tax operating margin
(a) 33% 17% 27% 25% 50% 20% 49% 32% N/M 26%
Average assets $ 1,082 $ 1,503 $ 2,585 $ 8,641 $ 1,359 $ 16,363 $ 16,680 $ 43,043 $ 49,951 $ 95,579(b)
Excluding intangible
amortization:
Noninterest expense $ 54 $ 52 $ 106 $ 410 $ 126 $ 301 $ 126 $ 963 $ 113 $ 1,182
Income before taxes 33 11 44 136 127 87 116 466 (67) 443
Pre-tax operating margin
(a) 38% 17% 29% 25% 50% 22% 49% 33% N/M 27%
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

For the quarter ended
June 30, 2006
(in millions,
presented on
an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset
&

Wealth
Management

Segment
Asset

Servicing
Issuer

Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 85 $ 51 $ 136 $ 474 $ 220 $ 352 $ 156 $ 1,202 $ 32 $ 1,370
Net interest revenue 3 13 16 114 54 56 97 321 28 365
Total revenue 88 64 152 588 274 408 253 1,523 60 1,735
Provision for credit
losses � (2) (2) � � (4) 7 3 (2) (1)
Noninterest expense 55 52 107 410 128 312 131 981 50 1,138
Income before taxes $ 33 $ 14 $ 47 $ 178 $ 146 $ 100 $ 115 $ 539 $ 12 $ 598
Pre-tax operating
margin (a) 38% 22% 31% 30% 53% 25% 45% 35% N/M 34%
Average assets $ 1,055 $ 1,446 $ 2,501 $ 8,873 $ 1,316 $ 17,175 $ 16,280 $ 43,644 $ 50,250 $ 96,395(b)
Excluding intangible
amortization:
Noninterest expense $ 51 $ 52 $ 103 $ 408 $ 127 $ 304 $ 131 $ 970 $ 50 $ 1,123
Income before taxes 37 14 51 180 147 108 115 550 12 613
Pre-tax operating
margin (a) 42% 22% 34% 31% 54% 26% 45% 36% N/M 35%
(a) Income before taxes divided by total revenue.
(b) Including average assets of discontinued operations of $45 million, $66 million, $51 million, $13,285 million and $13,993 million for

quarters ended June 30, 2007, March 31, 2007, Dec. 31, 2006, Sept. 30, 2006 and June 30, 2006, consolidated average assets were
$114,323 million for the second quarter of 2007, $102,041 million for the first quarter of 2007, $102,138 million for the fourth quarter of
2006, $108,864 million for the third quarter of 2006 and $110,388 million for the second quarter of 2006.

N/M - Not meaningful.

For the six
months ended
June 30, 2007

(in millions,
presented
on an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset
&

Wealth
Management

Segment
Asset

Servicing
Issuer

Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other
revenue $ 223 $ 103 $ 326 $ 996 $ 746 $ 628 $ 277 $ 2,647 $ 82 $ 3,055
Net interest
revenue 10 31 41 287 238 124 190 839 3 883
Total revenue 233 134 367 1,283 984 752 467 3,486 85 3,938
Provision for credit
losses � � � � � � (10) (10) (20) (30)
Noninterest
expense 139 111 250 915 504 575 259 2,253 158 2,661

$ 94 $ 23 $ 117 $ 368 $ 480 $ 177 $ 218 $ 1,243 $ (53) $ 1,307

Edgar Filing: Bank of New York Mellon CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 29



Income before
taxes
Pre-tax operating
margin (a) 40% 17% 32% 29% 49% 24% 47% 36% N/M 33%
Average assets $ 1,387 $ 1,468 $ 2,855 $ 11,382 $ 4,672 $ 16,315 $ 16,984 $ 49,353 $ 56,009 $ 108,217(b)
Excluding
intangible
amortization:
Noninterest
expense $ 131 $ 111 $ 242 $ 912 $ 470 $ 563 $ 259 $ 2,204 $ 158 $ 2,604
Income before
taxes 102 23 125 371 514 189 218 1,292 (53) 1,364
Pre-tax operating
margin (a) 44% 17% 34% 29% 52% 25% 47% 37% N/M 35%
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

For the six months ended
June 30, 2006
(in millions,
presented on
an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset
&

Wealth
Management

Segment
Asset

Servicing
Issuer

Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 164 $ 102 $ 266 $ 901 $ 385 $ 735 $ 291 $ 2,312 $ 57 $ 2,635
Net interest revenue 5 29 34 220 102 110 193 625 52 711
Total revenue 169 131 300 1,121 487 845 484 2,937 109 3,346
Provision for credit losses � (2) (2) � � (6) 15 9 (8) (1)
Noninterest expense 105 105 210 804 242 619 255 1,920 77 2,207
Income before taxes $ 64 $ 28 $ 92 $ 317 $ 245 $ 232 $ 214 $ 1,008 $ 40 $ 1,140
Pre-tax operating
margin (a) 38% 21% 31% 28% 50% 27% 44% 34% N/M 34%
Average assets $ 990 $ 1,485 $ 2,475 $ 8,150 $ 1,333 $ 17,277 $ 15,902 $ 42,662 $ 48,987 $ 94,124(b)
Excluding intangible
amortization:
Noninterest expense $ 98 $ 105 $ 203 $ 800 $ 241 $ 603 $ 255 $ 1,899 $ 77 $ 2,179
Income before taxes 71 28 99 321 246 248 214 1,029 40 1,168
Pre-tax operating margin (a) 42% 21% 33% 29% 51% 29% 44% 35% N/M 35%
(a) Income before taxes divided by total revenue.
(b) Including average assets of discontinued operations of $55 million for first six months of 2007 and $14,147 million for the first six months

of 2006, consolidated average assets were $108,272 million for the first six months of 2007 and $108,271 million for the first six months of
2006.

N/M - Not meaningful.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Asset and Wealth Management Segment

Asset and Wealth Management fee revenue is dependent on the overall level and mix of assets under management and the management fees
charged for managing those assets. Assets under management (�AUM�) were $153 billion at June 30, 2007, compared with $127 billion at
June 30, 2006, and $142 billion at March 31, 2007. The year-over-year increase in AUM primarily reflects the continued good growth across
asset classes and strategies. Institutional clients represent 77% of AUM while individual clients equal 23%.

Assets under management at period-end

(in billions) 2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07 2Q07
Equity securities $ 36 $ 36 $ 39 $ 41 $ 43
Fixed-income securities 21 20 21 22 22
Alternative investments 28 30 33 33 36
Liquid assets 31 34 38 34 41
Foreign exchange overlay 11 11 11 12 11
Total assets under management $ 127 $ 131 $ 142 $ 142 $ 153
As part of the planning process for the integration of The Bank of New York and Mellon, we no longer include securities lending cash collateral
assets in total assets under management. The following table provides a reconciliation of assets under management as originally reported to the
current disclosure format.

Assets under management reconciliation

(in billions) 2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07
Originally reported $ 170 $ 179 $ 190 $ 196
Securities lending adjustment (43) (48) (48) (54)
Assets under management - revised $ 127 $ 131 $ 142 $ 142
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Asset Management sector

(dollar amounts in millions,

unless otherwise noted;

2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07 2Q07

2Q07

vs.

2Q06

Year-to-date

YTD07

vs

YTD06
presented on an FTE basis)

2007 2006
Revenue:
Asset and wealth
management:
Mutual funds $ 3 $ 2 $ 3 $ 3 $ 4 33% $ 7 $ 5 40%
Institutional clients 61 64 72 68 80 31 148 116 28
Private clients 12 12 13 13 15 25 28 23 22
Total asset management
revenue 76 78 88 84 99 30 183 144 27
Performance fees 7 3 18 14 21 200 35 14 150
Other 2 3 3 3 2 � 5 6 (17)
Total fee and other revenue 85 84 109 101 122 44 223 164 36
Net interest revenue 3 3 7 6 4 N/M 10 5 100
Total revenue 88 87 116 107 126 43 233 169 38
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 51 54 70 63 68 33 131 98 34
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) 37 33 46 44 58 57 102 71 44
Amortization of intangible
assets 4 4 4 4 4 � 8 7 14
Income before taxes $ 33 $ 29 $ 42 $ 40 $ 54 64% $ 94 $ 64 47%
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) 42% 38% 40% 41% 46% 44% 42%

Average assets $ 1,055 $ 1,082 $ 1,226 $ 1,387 $ 1,387 31% $ 1,387 $ 990 40%
N/M - Not meaningful.

Business description

The Asset Management sector provides investment solutions predominantly to institutional investors around the world applying a broad
spectrum of investment strategies. Asset Management�s alternative strategies have expanded to include funds of hedge funds, private equity,
alternative fixed income, and real estate.

Our asset management subsidiaries include:

� Ivy Asset Management Corporation, one of the country�s leading fund of hedge funds firms, offers a comprehensive range of multi-
manager hedge fund products and customized portfolio solutions.
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� Alcentra, a company that offers sophisticated alternative credit investments, including leveraged loans and subordinated and distressed
debt.

� Urdang, a real estate investment firm, offers the opportunity to invest in real estate through separate accounts, a closed-end commingled
fund that invests directly in properties, and a separate account that invests in publicly-traded real estate investment trusts.

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation    21

Edgar Filing: Bank of New York Mellon CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 34



Table of Contents

Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

� Estabrook Capital Management LLC, a company that offers value-oriented investment management strategies, including socially
responsible investing.

� Gannett, Welsh & Kotler, a company that specializes in tax-exempt securities management and equity portfolio strategies.
We also provide investment management services directly to institutions and manage the �Hamilton� family of mutual funds.

Review of financial results

Income before taxes increased 64% to $54 million in the second quarter of 2007 from $33 million in the second quarter of 2006, and increased
35% from $40 million in the first quarter of 2007.

Fee and other revenue increased $37 million, or 44%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006 reflecting higher
asset management fees from institutional clients. Performance fees were up reflecting strong results at two of our alternative asset management
subsidiaries, Ivy Asset Management and Alcentra. Fee and other revenue increased on a sequential-quarter basis primarily reflecting the same
factors affecting year-over-year results.

Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) increased $17 million, or 33%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second
quarter of 2006 reflecting higher incentive compensation, outside help, technology and legal expenses. The sequential-quarter increase in
noninterest expense primarily reflects legal, technology and other compensation expenses.

On a year-to-date basis, income before taxes increased $30 million, or 47%, compared with the first six months of 2006. The pre-tax operating
margin (excluding intangible amortization) was 44% in the first six months of 2007 reflecting a 2% increase. Fee and other revenue increased
$59 million, or 36%, primarily due to higher asset management fees from institutional clients and higher performance fees at Ivy and Alcentra.
Net interest revenue increased $5 million compared with the first half of 2006 reflecting higher interest-earning assets. Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible amortization) increased $33 million, or 34%, in the first half of 2007 compared with the first half of 2006 primarily due to
higher other compensation, salaries and outside help, technology, occupancy and legal expenses.
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Wealth Management sector

(dollar amounts in
millions,

unless otherwise noted;

2Q07

vs. Year-to-date
YTD07
vs.

presented on an FTE
basis) 2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07 2Q07 2Q06 2007 2006 YTD06
Revenue:
Asset and wealth
management $ 50 $ 46 $ 48 $ 50 $ 50 �% $ 100 $ 99 1%
Other 1 1 1 1 2 N/M 3 3 �
Total fee and other
revenue 51 47 49 51 52 2 103 102 1
Net interest revenue 13 16 15 16 15 15 31 29 7
Total revenue 64 63 64 67 67 5 134 131 2
Provision for credit
losses (2) � � � � N/M � (2) N/M
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 52 52 53 55 56 8 111 105 6
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) 14 11 11 12 11 (21) 23 28 (18)
Amortization of
intangible assets � � � � � � � � �
Income before taxes $ 14 $ 11 $ 11 $ 12 $ 11 (21) $ 23 $ 28 (18)
Pre-tax operating
margin (excluding
intangible amortization) 22% 17% 17% 18% 16% 17% 21%

Average loans $ 1,352 $ 1,410 $ 1,373 $ 1,336 $ 1,341 (1) $ 1,339 $ 1,391 (4)
Average assets 1,446 1,503 1,481 1,448 1,487 3 1,468 1,485 (1)
Average deposits 1,110 1,116 1,090 1,119 1,065 (4) 1,092 1,125 (3)

Market value of total
client assets at
period-end (in billions) $ 61 $ 59 $ 60 $ 59 $ 59 (3) 59 61 (3)
N/M - Not meaningful.

Business description

In the Wealth Management sector, we offer a full array of investment management, wealth management, and comprehensive financial
management services to help individuals plan, invest, and arrange intergenerational wealth transition, which includes financial and estate
planning, trust and fiduciary services, customized banking services, and brokerage and investment solutions. Clients include predominantly
high-net-worth individuals, families, family offices, charitable gift programs, endowments, foundations, professionals, and entrepreneurs.

Review of financial results
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Income before taxes was down 21% to $11 million for the second quarter of 2007 from $14 million in the second quarter of 2006, and down 8%
from $12 million in the first quarter of 2007.

Total fee and other revenue increased $1 million, or 2%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006 primarily
resulting from nonrecurring termination fees, new business and market performance.

Net interest revenue increased $2 million, or 15%, compared with the second quarter of 2006, reflecting growth in non-interest bearing deposits
coupled with a higher spread earned. On a sequential-quarter basis, net interest revenue
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decreased reflecting a lower level of deposits and a challenging spread environment.

Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) increased $4 million, or 8%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second
quarter of 2006 primarily reflecting higher salaries and outside help, occupancy and technology expense. The sequential-quarter increase
primarily reflects higher technology expense.

On a year-to-date basis, income before taxes decreased $5 million, or 18%, compared with the first six months of 2006. The pre-tax operating
margin (excluding intangible amortization) was 17% in the first six months of 2007 reflecting a 4% decrease. Fee and other revenue increased
$1 million, or 1%. Net interest revenue increased reflecting growth in noninterest bearing deposits coupled with a higher spread earned.
Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) increased $6 million, or 6%, in the first half of 2007 compared with the first half of
2006 primarily driven by higher salaries and outside help, operations and occupancy expenses.

Institutional Services Segment

Asset Servicing sector

(dollar amounts in millions,

unless otherwise noted;

presented on an FTE
basis)

2Q07 Year-to-date YTD07

2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07 2Q07
vs.
2Q06 2007 2006

vs.
YTD06

Revenue:
Securities servicing fees -
Asset Servicing $ 364 $ 345 $ 353 $ 393 $ 426 17% $ 819 $ 698 17%
Foreign exchange and other
trading activities 79 50 54 68 77 (3) 145 145 �
Other 31 32 17 15 17 (45) 32 58 (45)
Total fee and other revenue 474 427 424 476 520 10 996 901 11
Net interest revenue 114 119 136 132 155 36 287 220 30
Total revenue 588 546 560 608 675 15 1,283 1,121 14
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 408 410 414 441 471 15 912 800 14
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) 180 136 146 167 204 13 371 321 16
Amortization of intangible
assets 2 1 8 1 2 � 3 4 N/M
Income before taxes $ 178 $ 135 $ 138 $ 166 $ 202 13 $ 368 $ 317 16
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) 31% 25% 26% 27% 30% 29% 29%

Average assets $ 8,873 $ 8,641 $ 9,453 $ 10,610 $ 12,146 37 $ 11,382 $ 8,150 40
Average deposits 23,372 23,660 24,048 24,409 29,773 27 27,106 22,282 22
Securities lending revenue 50 40 35 36 54 8 90 95 (5)
Market value of securities
on loan at period-end (in

380 389 399 397 397 4 397 380 4
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N/M - Not meaningful.
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Business description

The Asset Servicing sector includes global custody, global fund services, securities lending, global liquidity services, outsourcing, government
securities clearance, collateral management, credit-related services, and other linked revenues, principally foreign exchange. Clients include
corporate and public retirement funds, foundations and global financial institutions including banks, broker-dealers, investment managers,
insurance companies, and mutual funds.

We are one of the leading securities servicing companies with a total of $14.9 trillion of assets under custody and administration at June 30,
2007. We are one of the largest mutual fund custodians for U.S. funds and one of the largest providers of fund services in the world with over
$2.0 trillion in total assets. We also service more than 45% of the exchange-traded funds in the United States, and are a leading U.K. custodian.
In securities lending, we are one of the largest lenders of U.S. Treasury securities and depositary receipts with a lending pool of approximately
$1.9 trillion in 27 markets around the world.

We clear approximately 50% of transactions in U.S. Government securities. We are a leader in global clearance, clearing equity and fixed
income transactions in 101 markets. With $1.5 trillion in tri-party balances worldwide, we are a leading collateral management agent.

Review of financial results

Income before taxes was up 13% to $202 million for the second quarter of 2007 from $178 million in the second quarter of 2006, and up 22%
from $166 million in the first quarter of 2007.

Total fee and other revenue increased $46 million, or 10%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006 driven by
increased transaction volumes, new assets from existing clients and organic growth across all business products, especially global custody,
domestic and international mutual funds, exchange-traded funds, hedge fund servicing and collateral management. European asset servicing
continues to gain momentum with strong second quarter revenue growth across all products, again reflective of the significant cross-border
investment interest and capital flow. In addition, we benefited from the conversion of AIB/BNY to a wholly-owned subsidiary in the fourth
quarter of 2006. Securities lending revenue increased $18 million, or 50%, on a sequential-quarter basis and $4 million, or 8%, from the second
quarter of 2006 primarily due to higher spreads for fixed income as well as increased volumes and fees. Additionally, the sequential quarter
increase reflects seasonality.

In broker-dealer services, the continued adoption of tri-party repo arrangements remains a key driver. The growth in global clearance was due to
new business wins and increased volume from existing clients. We now handle approximately $1.5 trillion of financing for our broker-dealer
clients daily through collateralized financing agreements, up approximately 20% from a year ago.

Foreign exchange revenue and other trading activities declined from the year-ago quarter as higher volumes were offset by lower volatility.
Foreign exchange and other trading activities results increased on a sequential-quarter basis driven by higher volumes.

Net interest revenue increased $41 million compared with the second quarter of 2006, and increased $23 million compared with the first quarter
of 2007, primarily driven by deposit growth coupled with the higher value of deposits in a rising rate environment.

Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) increased $63 million, or 15%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second
quarter of 2006 reflecting higher claims by clients, salaries and outside help, sub-custodian, technology, occupancy and the conversion of
AIB/BNY to a wholly-owned subsidiary. The sequential-quarter increase is primarily due to increased technology, sub-custodian, claims by
clients, occupancy and salaries and outside help.

On a year-to-date basis, income before taxes increased $51 million, or 16%, compared with the first six months of 2006. The pre-tax operating
margin (excluding intangible amortization) was 29%
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

in the first six months of 2007 and 2006. Fee and other revenue increased $95 million, or 11%, primarily due to organic growth from existing
clients across all products and the conversion of AIB/BNY to a wholly-owned subsidiary. Net interest revenue increased $67 million primarily
driven by deposit growth coupled with the higher value of deposits in a rising rate environment. Noninterest expense (excluding intangible
amortization) increased $112 million, or 14%, in the first half of 2007 compared with the first half of 2006 primarily due to higher claims by
customers, salaries and outside help, sub-custodian, occupancy, technology and the conversion of AIB/BNY to a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Issuer Services sector

(dollar amounts in millions,

unless otherwise noted;
presented on an FTE basis)

2Q07

vs.

2Q07

vs. Year-to-date

YTD07

vs.
2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07 2Q07 1Q07 2Q06 2007 2006 YTD06

Revenue:
Securities servicing fees -
Issuer services $ 207 $ 194 $ 340 $ 319 $ 367 15% 77% $ 686 $ 361 90%
Other 13 11 31 37 23 (38) 77 60 24 150
Total fee and other revenue 220 205 371 356 390 10 77 746 385 94
Net interest revenue 54 49 107 110 128 16 137 238 102 133
Total revenue 274 254 478 466 518 11 89 984 487 102
Provision for credit losses � 1 (1) � � � � � � �
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 127 126 230 234 236 1 86 470 241 95
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) 147 127 249 232 282 22 92 514 246 109
Amortization of intangible
assets 1 1 16 17 17 � N/M 34 1 N/M
Income before taxes $ 146 $ 126 $ 233 $ 215 $ 265 23 82 $ 480 $ 245 96
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) 54% 50% 52% 50% 54% 52% 51%

Average assets $ 1,316 $ 1,359 $ 3,988 $ 4,235 $ 5,104 21 288 $ 4,672 $ 1,333 250
Average deposits 6,350 5,837 10,935 11,711 18,431 57 190 15,090 6,094 148

Number of corporate actions 660 656 526 344 682 98 3 1,026 992 3
Depository receipt trading
value (in billions) $ 182 $ 144 $ 178 $ 233 $ 248 6 36 481 342 41

N/M - Not meaningful.
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Business description

The Issuer Services sector provides a diverse array of products and services to corporations and shareholders, including corporate trust,
depositary receipts, employee investment plan services, and stock transfer. Revenue is driven by the volume of transactions processed and types
of services provided.

We are the depositary for more than 1,270 American and global depositary receipt programs, with a 63% market share, servicing leading
companies from 60 countries. As the world�s largest trustee, we provide diverse services for corporate, municipal, structured, and international
debt securities. We serve as trustee or agent for some 90,000 clients with $10 trillion in outstanding debt securities from offices in 51 cities
worldwide. We are the third largest stock transfer agent in the United States, servicing more than 17 million shareowners. Investment plan
services has more than 120 clients with 650,000 employees in over 54 countries.

Review of financial results

Income before taxes was up 82% to $265 million for the second quarter of 2007 from $146 million in the second quarter of 2006, and up 23%
from $215 million in the first quarter of 2007.

Total fee and other revenue increased $170 million, or 77%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006. Issuer
services fees continued to exhibit strong growth in the second quarter compared with last year�s second quarter. The Acquired Corporate Trust
Business significantly impacted comparisons of the second quarter of 2007 to the second quarter of 2006. Issuer services fees increased
sequentially over the strong first quarter reflecting continued excellent performance in corporate and municipal finance products. On a
sequential-quarter basis, depositary receipts had another quarter of double-digit growth reflecting strong seasonal activity. We also continue to
see strong underlying activity, particularly from emerging markets.

Other fee revenue increased $10 million, compared with the second quarter of 2006 and decreased $14 million compared with the first quarter of
2007, due primarily to the net economic value payments related to deposits of the Acquired Corporate Trust Business. The net economic value
payments totaled $13 million in the second quarter of 2007 and $25 million in the first quarter of 2007.

Net interest revenue increased $74 million, or 137%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006, primarily
resulting from the Acquired Corporate Trust Business and organic growth, reflecting the impact of new business and increased client volumes,
as well as increased deposit spreads due to rising interest rates. The sequential-quarter increase in net interest revenue was driven by the
conversion of $10 billion of deposits from the Acquired Corporate Trust Business and by the higher value on noninterest-bearing deposits.
Average deposits were $18.4 billion in the second quarter of 2007, compared with $6.4 billion in the second quarter of 2006 and $11.7 billion in
the first quarter of 2007. The higher levels of deposits reflect the impact of the Acquired Corporate Trust Business as well as increased liquidity
from our other issuer services customers compared with 2006.

Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) increased $109 million, or 86%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the
second quarter of 2006 reflecting the impact of the Acquired Corporate Trust Business and expenses associated with revenue growth in
depositary receipts and corporate trust. The sequential-quarter increase reflects higher salaries, outside help and claims by clients.

Income before taxes increased $235 million, or 96%, in the first six months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 primarily
resulting from increased fee and other revenue. Fee and other revenue increased $361 million, or 94%, during the first half of 2007 compared
with the first half of 2006 due to the impact of the Acquired Corporate Trust Business as well as continued strong growth.

Net interest revenue increased $136 million, or 133%, in the first six months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 primarily due
to the Acquired Corporate Trust Business and organic
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growth, reflecting the impact of new business and increased client volumes, as well as increased deposit spreads due to rising interest rates.

Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) increased $229 million, or 95%, in the first six months of 2007 compared with the first
six months of 2006 primarily due to the Acquired Corporate Trust Business as well as expenses incurred in support of business growth.

Clearing & Execution Services sector

(dollar amounts in millions,

unless otherwise noted;

presented on an FTE basis)

2Q07

vs.

2Q07

vs. Year-to-date

YTD07

vs.

2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07 2Q07 1Q07 2Q06 2007 2006 YTD06
Revenue:
Securities servicing fees -
Clearing and execution
services $ 325 $ 290 $ 266 $ 281 $ 291 4% (10)% $ 572 $ 654 (13)%
Other 27 38 30 27 29 7 7 56 81 (31)
Total fee and other revenue 352 328 296 308 320 4 (9) 628 735 (15)
Net interest revenue 56 60 63 61 63 3 13 124 110 13
Total revenue 408 388 359 369 383 4 (6) 752 845 (11)
Provision for credit losses (4) � 2 � � � � � (6) N/M
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 304 301 256 270 293 9 (4) 563 603 (7)
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) 108 87 101 99 90 (9) (17) 189 248 (24)
Amortization of intangible
assets 8 8 6 6 6 � (25) 12 16 (25)
Income before taxes $ 100 $ 79 $ 95 $ 93 $ 84 (10) (16) $ 177 $ 232 (24)
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) 26% 22% 28% 27% 23% 25% 29%
Average assets $ 17,175 $ 16,363 $ 14,825 $ 16,363 $ 16,267 (1) (5) $ 16,315 $ 17,277 (6)
Average active accounts (in
thousands) 5,122 5,168 5,133 5,149 5,195 1 1 5,172 5,058 2
Average margin deposits (in
thousands) 5,506 5,158 5,176 5,396 5,551 3 1 5,474 5,577 (2)

N/M - Not meaningful.
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Business description

Our Clearing & Execution Services sector consists of the Pershing clearing business, a 35% equity interest in BNY ConvergEx Group and the
B-Trade and G-Trade businesses, which are expected to become part of the BNY ConvergEx Group in 2008. The BNY ConvergEx transaction
changed the accounting from a fully consolidated subsidiary to a 35% equity interest recorded in other income.

Our Pershing and Pershing Advisor Solutions subsidiaries provide financial institutions and independent registered investment advisors with
operational support, trading services, flexible technology, and practice management programs, all with unrivalled service excellence. Pershing
services more than 1,150 retail and institutional financial organizations and independent registered investment advisors who collectively
represent more than five million active investors.

Through our affiliate, BNY ConvergEx Group LLC, we provide liquidity and execution management, investment technologies, research and
commission management, transition management and intermediary and clearing services in over 90 global markets, executing 545 million shares
each day and clearing more than 1.2 million trades daily.

In execution services, we provide broker-assisted and electronic trading services. Our execution services business is one of the largest global
institutional agency brokerage organizations. In addition, we are one of the leading institutional electronic brokers for non-U.S. dollar equity
execution.

Review of financial results

Income before taxes decreased 16% to $84 million for the second quarter of 2007 from $100 million in the second quarter of 2006, and
decreased $9 million, or 10%, from $93 million in the first quarter of 2006.

Total fee and other revenue decreased $32 million, or 9%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006. Clearing and
execution services fees declined reflecting the disposition of certain execution businesses in the BNY ConvergEx transaction. These businesses
had revenues of $74 million in the second quarter of 2006. On a sequential-quarter basis, clearing and execution servicing fees were up
$10 million, or 4% (unannualized), reflecting solid performance at Pershing as well as the benefits of new business.

Net interest revenue increased $7 million, or 13%, compared with the second quarter of 2006, and $2 million compared with the first quarter of
2007, resulting from a higher level of interest-earning assets offset by lower spreads.

Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) decreased $11 million, or 4%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second
quarter of 2006 reflecting lower clearing expense, commissions, incentive compensation, and the disposition of certain execution businesses in
the BNY ConvergEx transaction. The sequential-quarter increase in noninterest expense reflects higher incentive compensation and clearing
expense as well as costs associated with the transfer of positions to Florida.

On a year-to-date basis, income before taxes decreased $55 million, or 24%, compared with the first six months of 2006. The pre-tax operating
margin (excluding intangible amortization) was 25% in the first six months of 2007 reflecting a 4% decrease. Fee and other revenue decreased
$107 million, or 15%, primarily due to the BNY ConvergEx transaction and the $35 million gain on the sale of NYSE seats in 2006. Net interest
revenue increased by $14 million reflecting a higher level of interest-earning assets partially offset by lower spreads. Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible amortization) decreased $40 million, or 7%, in the first half of 2007 compared with the first half of 2006 primarily due to
lower clearing expenses, other compensation and commissions.
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Treasury Services sector

(dollar amounts

in millions, unless

otherwise noted;

presented on an

FTE basis)

2Q07

vs. Year-to-date

YTD07

vs.

2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07 2Q07 2Q06 2007 2006 YTD06
Revenue:
Treasury services $ 50 $ 53 $ 49 $ 48 $ 53 6% $ 101 $ 99 2%
Other 106 88 83 84 92 (13) 176 192 (8)
Total fee and
other revenue 156 141 132 132 145 (7) 277 291 (5)
Net interest
revenue 97 98 101 97 93 (4) 190 193 (2)
Total revenue 253 239 233 229 238 (6) 467 484 (4)
Provision for
credit losses 7 (3) (7) (3) (7) N/M (10) 15 (167)
Noninterest
expense
(excluding
intangible
amortization) 131 126 129 130 129 (2) 259 255 2
Income before
taxes (excluding
intangible
amortization) 115 116 111 102 116 1 218 214 2
Amortization of
intangible assets � � � � � � �
Income before
taxes $ 115 $ 116 $ 111 $ 102 $ 116 1 $ 218 $ 214 2
Average loans $ 12,256 $ 12,998 $ 13,174 $ 13,320 $ 13,196 8 $ 13,258 $ 12,037 10
Average assets 16,280 16,680 16,615 17,003 16,966 4 16,984 15,902 7
Average deposits 11,532 12,125 13,988 13,075 13,787 20 13,433 11,270 19
Pre-tax operating
margin (excluding
intangible
amortization) 45% 49% 48% 45% 49% 47% 44%
N/M - Not meaningful.

Business description

The Treasury Services sector includes treasury services, capital markets business, and large corporate banking.
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Treasury Services offers leading-edge technology, innovative products, and industry expertise to help its clients optimize cash flow, manage
liquidity, and make payments around the world in more than 90 different countries. We maintain a global network of branches, representative
offices and correspondent banks to provide comprehensive payment services including funds transfer, cash management, trade services and
liquidity management. We are one of the largest funds transfer banks in the U.S. transferring over $1.4 trillion daily via more than 150,000 wire
transfers. Treasury services revenue is driven by the volume of transactions processed, types of service provided and net interest revenue earned
from deposit balances generated by activity across the business operations.

We provide lending and credit-related services to large public and private corporations and financial institutions nationwide through a broad
range of capital markets services including syndicated loans, bond underwriting, and private placements of corporate debt and equity securities.
Revenue is driven by the volume of transactions.

Our corporate lending strategy is to focus on those clients and industries that are major users of securities servicing and treasury services.
Revenue from our lending activities is driven by loan levels.

Review of financial results

Income before taxes was up 1% to $116 million for the second quarter of 2007 from $115 million in the second quarter of 2006, and up 14%
from $102 million in the first quarter of 2007.
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Total fee and other revenue decreased $11 million, or 7%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006. Treasury
services fees were up $3 million from the second quarter of 2006 and $5 million from the first quarter of 2007 reflecting higher client volumes
and new business in the global payment business. Financing-related fees increased 29% sequentially reflecting higher underwriting fees and
were down 4% from the second quarter of 2006 reflecting lower transactions and syndication fees. Other income increased sequentially and was
down from a year-ago quarter reflecting higher asset-related gains in the second quarter of 2006.

Net interest revenue decreased compared with the second quarter of 2006 reflecting higher volumes offset by lower spreads on loans. The
sequential-quarter decrease reflects lower spreads and volumes on loans partially offset by higher volumes of noninterest bearing deposits.

Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) decreased $2 million, or 2%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second
quarter of 2006 primarily due to lower other compensation.

Income before taxes increased $4 million, or 2%, in the first six months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 primarily due to a
$10 million credit to the allowance for credit losses compared with a $15 million expense in the first half of last year partially offset by lower
asset-related gains in 2007.

Fee and other revenue decreased $14 million, or 5%, in the first six months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006.

Net interest revenue decreased $3 million, or 2%, in the first six months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 reflecting the same
factors affecting the quarterly results.

Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) increased $4 million, or 2%, in the first six months of 2007 compared with the first six
months of 2006 primarily in support of business growth.

Other Segment

Year-to-date
(in millions) 2Q06 3Q06 4Q06 1Q07 2Q07 2007 2006
Revenue:
Fee and other revenue $ 32 $ 31 $ 60 $ 51 $ 31 $ 82 $ 57
Net interest revenue 28 13 23 7 (4) 3 52
Total revenue 60 44 83 58 27 85 109
Provision for credit losses (2) (2) (9) (12) (8) (20) (8)
Noninterest expense (excluding intangible
amortization/merger and integration expense) 50 24 82 36 60 96 77
Income (loss) before taxes (excluding intangible
amortization/merger and integration expense) 12 22 10 34 (25) 9 40
Merger and integration expenses:
The Bank of New York Mellon � � � 4 35 39 �
Acquired Corporate Trust Business � 89 17 11 12 23 �
Total merger and integration expenses � 89 17 15 47 62 �
Income (loss) before taxes $ 12 $ (67) $ (7) $ 19 $ (72) $ (53) $ 40
Average assets $ 50,250 $ 49,951 $ 54,499 $ 50,929 $ 60,921 $ 56,009 $ 48,987
Average deposits 11,510 11,838 8,983 8,448 5,878 7,156 11,856
N/M - Not meaningful.
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Business description

The Other Segment primarily includes:

� the results of leasing operations;

� investing and funding operations; and

� corporate overhead.
Revenue in the Other sector primarily reflects:

� net interest revenue from the leasing portfolio; and

� gains (losses) from the sale of securities and other assets.
Noninterest expense includes:

� direct expenses supporting leasing, investing and funding activities;

� certain corporate overhead not directly attributable to the operations of other segments; and

� expenses previously allocated to the Retail and Middle Market Banking Segment that did not qualify for treatment as discontinued
operations expense.

Also, the tax equivalent adjustment is eliminated in the Other Segment.

Review of financial results

Income before taxes was a loss of $72 million for the second quarter of 2007, compared with a gain of $12 million in the second quarter of 2006,
and a gain of $19 million in the first quarter of 2007.

Total fee and other revenue decreased $1 million, or 3%, in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006 reflecting
lower gains in the sponsor fund portfolio. The sequential-quarter decline reflects lower other trading revenue due to the recognition of hedging
costs associated with synthetic fuel tax credit investments and losses on swaps that no longer qualify as hedges.

The decrease in net interest revenue compared with the second quarter of 2006 and first quarter of 2007 reflects the impact of interest rates on
transfer pricing methodology as well as lower leasing related net interest revenue.
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Provision for credit losses totaled a credit of $8 million in the second quarter of 2007, compared with a credit of $2 million in the second quarter
of 2006 and a credit of $12 million in the first quarter of 2007.

Noninterest expense increased $57 million, or 114%, in the second quarter of 2007, compared with the second quarter of 2006 primarily
reflecting merger and integration costs, consulting expense, compensation and benefits. The sequential-quarter increase primarily reflects higher
merger and integration expense associated with the Acquired Corporate Trust Business and the merger transaction with Mellon.

Income before taxes was a loss of $53 million in the first half of 2007 compared with income of $40 million in the first half of 2006. Total fee
and other revenue increased $25 million compared with the first half of 2006 reflecting higher gains in the sponsor fund portfolio and transition
services revenue. Net interest revenue decreased $49 million and noninterest expense increased $81 million compared with the first half of 2006,
both changes primarily reflect the same factors responsible for the second quarter 2007 to second quarter 2006 increase.

Critical accounting policies

Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1 of The Bank of New York�s 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our critical
accounting policies are those related to the allowance for credit losses, the valuation of derivatives and securities where quoted market prices are
not available, goodwill and other intangibles, and pension accounting.

Allowance for credit losses

The allowance for credit losses and allowance for lending-related commitments consist of four elements: (1) an allowance for impaired credits;
(2) an allowance for higher risk rated loans and exposures; (3) an allowance for pass rated loans and
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exposures; and (4) an unallocated allowance based on general economic conditions and certain risk factors in our individual portfolio and
markets. Further discussion on the four elements can be found under �Consolidated Balance Sheet Review� in the MD&A section.

The allowance for credit losses represents management�s estimate of probable losses inherent in our credit portfolio. This evaluation process is
subject to numerous estimates and judgments. Probability of default ratings are assigned after analyzing the credit quality of each borrower/
counterparty and our internal ratings are generally consistent with external ratings agencies default databases. Loss given default ratings are
driven by the collateral, structure, and seniority of each individual asset and are consistent with external loss given default/recovery databases.
The portion of the allowance related to impaired credits is based on the present value of future cash flows. Changes in the estimates of
probability of default, risk ratings, loss given default/recovery rates, and cash flows could have a direct impact on the allocated allowance for
loan losses.

To the extent actual results differ from forecasts or management�s judgment, the allowance for credit losses may be greater or less than future
charge-offs.

We consider it difficult to quantify the impact of changes in forecast on our allowance for credit losses. Nevertheless, we believe the following
discussion may enable investors to better understand the variables that drive the allowance for credit losses.

A key variable in determining the allowance is management�s judgment in determining the size of the unallocated allowance. At June 30, 2007,
the unallocated allowance was 28% of the total allowance. If the unallocated allowance were five percent higher or lower, the allowance would
have increased or decreased by $21 million, respectively.

The credit rating assigned to each credit is another significant variable in determining the allowance. If each credit were rated one grade better,
the allowance would have decreased by $69 million, while if each credit were rated one grade worse, the allowance would have increased by
$112 million.

Similarly, if the loss given default were one rating worse, the allowance would have increased by $34 million, while if the loss given default
were one rating better, the allowance would have decreased by $39 million.

For impaired credits, if the fair value of the loans were 10% higher or lower, the allowance would have decreased or increased by $1 million,
respectively.

Valuation of derivatives and securities where quoted market prices are not available

When quoted market prices are not available for derivatives and securities values, such values are determined at fair value, which is defined as
the value at which positions could be closed out or sold in a transaction with a willing counterparty over a period of time consistent with our
trading or investment strategy. Fair value for these instruments is determined based on discounted cash flow analysis, comparison to similar
instruments, and the use of financial models. Financial models use as their basis independently-sourced market parameters including, for
example, interest rate yield curves, option volatilities, and currency rates. Discounted cash flow analysis is dependent upon estimated future cash
flows and the level of interest rates. Model-based pricing uses inputs of observable prices for interest rates, foreign exchange rates, option
volatilities and other factors. Models are benchmarked and validated by independent parties. Our valuation process takes into consideration
factors such as counterparty credit quality, liquidity, concentration concerns and results of stress tests. We apply judgment in the application of
these factors. In addition, we must apply judgment when no external parameters exist. In times of financial stress, actual prices and valuations
may significantly diverge from results predicted by models. Finally, other factors can affect our estimate of fair value including market
dislocations, incorrect model assumptions, and unexpected correlations.
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These valuation methods could expose us to materially different results should the models used or underlying assumptions be inaccurate. See
�Use of Estimates� in �Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies� of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement in The Bank
of New York�s 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

To assist in assessing the impact of a change in valuation, at June 30, 2007, approximately $2.1 billion of our portfolio of securities and
derivatives is not priced based on quoted market prices because no such quoted market prices are available. A change of 2.5% in the valuation of
these securities and derivatives would result in a change in pre-tax income of $53 million.

Goodwill and other intangibles

We record all assets and liabilities acquired in purchase acquisitions, including goodwill, indefinite-lived intangibles, and other intangibles, at
fair value as required by FASB Statements No. 141 and No. 142 (�SFAS 141� and �SFAS 142�), �Business Combinations� and �Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.� Goodwill ($5,120 million at June 30, 2007) and indefinite-lived intangible assets ($370 million at June 30, 2007) are not
amortized but are subject to annual tests for impairment or more often if events or circumstances indicate they may be impaired. Other intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives and are subject to impairment if events or circumstances indicate a possible inability to
realize the carrying amount.

The initial recording of goodwill, indefinite-lived intangibles, and other intangibles requires subjective judgments concerning estimates of the
fair value of acquired assets.

The goodwill impairment test is performed in two phases. The first step compares the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount,
including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not impaired;
however, if the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an additional procedure must be performed. That additional
procedure compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit�s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. An impairment loss is
recorded to the extent that the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are evaluated for
impairment at least annually by comparing their fair value to their carrying value.

Other intangible assets ($1,067 million at June 30, 2007) are evaluated for impairment if events and circumstances indicate a possible
impairment. Such evaluation of other intangible assets is based on undiscounted cash flow projections. We recorded a $6 million impairment
charge in 2006 related to the write-off of customer intangibles in Europe.

Fair value may be determined using: market prices, comparison to similar assets, market multiples, discounted cash flow analysis and other
determinates. Estimated cash flows may extend far into the future and, by their nature, are difficult to determine over an extended timeframe.
Factors that may significantly affect the estimates include, among others, competitive forces, customer behaviors and attrition, changes in
revenue growth trends, cost structures and technology, and changes in discount rates and specific industry or market sector conditions. Other key
judgments in accounting for intangibles include useful life and classification between goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles or other
intangibles that require amortization. See Note �Goodwill and Intangibles� in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information regarding intangible assets.

To assist in assessing the impact of a goodwill, indefinite-lived intangibles, or other intangible asset impairment charge, at June 30, 2007, we
have $6.6 billion of goodwill, indefinite-lived intangibles, and other intangible assets. The impact of a 5% impairment charge would result in
reduction in pre-tax income of approximately $328 million.

Pension accounting

We have defined benefit pension plans covering approximately 14,200 U.S. employees and approximately 2,750 non-U.S. employees.
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We have three defined benefit pension plans in the U.S. and six overseas. The U.S. plans account for 77% of the projected benefit obligation.
Pension expense was $38 million in 2006, compared with $26 million in 2005 and a pension credit of $24 million in 2004. In addition to our
pension plans, we also have an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (�ESOP�) which may provide additional benefits to certain employees. Upon
retirement, covered employees are entitled to the higher of their benefit under the ESOP or the defined benefit plan. If the benefit is higher under
the defined benefit plan, the employees� ESOP account is contributed to the pension plan.

A number of key assumption and measurement date values determine pension expense. The key elements include the long-term rate of return on
plan assets, the discount rate, the market-related value of plan assets, and for the primary U.S. plan the price used to value stock in the ESOP.
Since 2004, these key elements have varied as follows:

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005 2004
Domestic plans:
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 7.88% 8.25% 8.75%
Discount rate 6.00 5.88 6.00 6.25
Market-related value of plan assets (a) $ 1,352 $ 1,324 $ 1,502 $ 1,523
ESOP stock price (a) 34.85 30.46 30.67 27.88
Net U.S. pension credit/(expense) N/A $ (26) $ (17) $ 31
All other pension credit/(expense) N/A (12) (9) (7)
Total pension credit/(expense) (b) N/A $ (38) $ (26) $ 24
(a) Actuarially smoothed data. See �Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies� in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

in our 2006 Annual Report.
(b) Pension benefits expense includes discontinued operations expense of $6 million in 2006, 2005, and 2004.
The discount rate for U.S. pension plans was determined after reviewing a number of high quality long-term bond indexes whose yields were
adjusted to match the duration of our pension liability. We also reviewed the results of several models that matched bonds to our pension cash
flows. The various indexes and models produced discount rates ranging from 5.91% to 6.10%. After reviewing the various indexes and models,
we selected a discount rate of 6.00%. The discount rates for foreign pension plans are based on high quality corporate bonds rates in countries
that have an active corporate bond market. In those countries with no active corporate bond market, discount rates are based on local government
bond rates plus a credit spread.

Our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on anticipated returns for each asset class. For 2007 and 2006, the assumptions for
the long-term rates of return on plan assets were 8.00% and 7.88%, respectively. Anticipated returns are weighted for the target allocation for
each asset class. Anticipated returns are based on forecasts for prospective returns in the equity and fixed-income markets, which should track
the long-term historical returns for these markets. We also consider the growth outlook for U.S. and global economies, as well as current and
prospective interest rates.

The market-related value of plan assets also influences the level of pension expense. Differences between expected and actual returns are
recognized over five years to compute an actuarially derived market-related value of plan assets. In 2006, the market-related value of plan assets
declined as the extraordinary actual return in 2000 was replaced with a more modest return. The market-related value of plan assets grew slightly
for 2007 as the pension fund earned more normal returns.

Unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the future service period (11 years) of active employees if they exceed a threshold
amount. We currently have unrecognized losses which are being amortized.

For 2006, U.S. pension expense increased by $9 million reflecting changes in assumptions, the amortization of unrecognized pension losses, and
a decline in the market-related value of plan assets, partly offset by a switch to the computation of benefits from final average pay to career
average pay. U.S. pension expense for the existing plans of The Bank of New York is expected to decline
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approximately $30 million in 2007 primarily due to employees working longer and the Pension Protection Act of 2006. The annual impacts on
the primary U.S. plan of hypothetical changes in the key elements on the pension expense are shown in the following table.

(dollar amounts in millions, except per share amounts)
Increase in Decrease in

pension expense 2007 base pension expense
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.00% 7.50% 8.00% 8.50% 9.00%
Change in pension expense $ 18.4 $ 9.2 N/A $ 9.2 $ 18.4

Discount rate 5.50% 5.75% 6.00% 6.25% 6.50%
Change in pension expense $ 11.8 $ 5.8 N/A $ 5.7 $ 11.2

Market-related value of plan assets -20.00% -10.00% $ 1,352 +10.00% +20.00%
Change in pension expense $ 50.6 $ 25.3 N/A $ 25.2 $ 46.9

ESOP stock price $ 24.85 $ 29.85 $ 34.85 $ 39.85 $ 44.85
Change in pension expense $ 14.5 $ 7.0 N/A $ 6.5 $ 12.5
N/A - Not applicable.

Consolidated balance sheet review

Total assets were $126.3 billion at June 30, 2007, compared with $108.9 billion at June 30, 2006 and $99.8 billion at March 31, 2007. The
increase in assets from March 31, 2007 primarily reflects a significant seasonal increase in client activity at quarter-end and the transition of the
deposits of the Acquired Corporate Trust Business. Total shareholders� equity was $11.8 billion at June 30, 2007, compared with $10.1 billion at
June 30, 2006 and $11.5 billion at March 31, 2007.

On a continuing operations basis, return on average common equity for the second quarter of 2007 was 15.54%, (16.65% excluding merger and
integration costs) compared with 15.85% in the second quarter of 2006 and 15.70% in the first quarter of 2007 (16.06% excluding merger and
integration costs).

On a continuing operations basis, return on average assets for the second quarter of 2007 was 1.57%, (1.68% excluding merger and integration
costs) compared with 1.54% in the second quarter of 2006 and 1.73% in the first quarter of 2007 (1.78% excluding merger and integration
costs).

Investment securities

The following table shows the distribution of our securities portfolio:

Investment securities (at fair value)

(in millions)
June 30,

2007
Dec. 31,

2006
Fixed income securities:
Mortgage and asset-backed securities $ 24,692 $ 18,249
Corporate debt 650 256
Short-term money market instruments 420 531
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U.S. treasury securities 136 86
U.S. government agencies 663 673
State and political subdivisions 74 88
Emerging market debt (collateralized by U.S. treasury zero coupon obligations) � 116
Other foreign debt 10 10
Subtotal fixed income securities 26,645 20,009
Equity securities:
Money market or fixed income funds 441 1,032
Other 83 46
Subtotal equity securities 524 1,078
Total investment securities $ 27,169 $ 21,087
Total investment securities were $27.2 billion at June 30, 2007, compared with $27.4 billion at

36     The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

Edgar Filing: Bank of New York Mellon CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 58



Table of Contents

Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

June 30, 2006, and $23.7 billion at March 31, 2007. Average investment securities were $25.5 billion in the second quarter of 2007, compared
with $23.2 billion in the second quarter of 2006 and $22.4 billion in the first quarter of 2007. Our portfolio of mortgage and asset-backed
securities are rated:

� 92% AAA

� 6% AA

� 2% A
In replacing securities that mature or are paid off, we have been adding either adjustable or short life classes of structured mortgage-backed
securities, both of which have short durations. The effective duration of our mortgage and asset-backed portfolio at June 30, 2007 was
approximately 1.4 years. The duration of our securities portfolio has declined in 2007 as we have purchased floating rate notes to better match
the duration of the deposits in the Acquired Corporate Trust Business.

Unrealized net loss on securities available-for-sale was $159 million at June 30, 2007, compared with unrealized net losses of $274 million at
June 30, 2006, and unrealized net loss of $1 million at March 31, 2007. The asymmetrical accounting treatment of the impact of a change in
interest rates on our balance sheet may create a situation in which an increase in interest rates can adversely affect reported equity and regulatory
capital, even though economically there may be no impact on the economic capital position. For example, an increase in rates will result in a
decline in the value of the fixed rate portion of our fixed income investment portfolio, which will be reflected through a reduction in other
comprehensive income in shareholders� equity, thereby affecting the tangible common equity (�TCE�) ratio. Under current accounting rules, there
is no corresponding change in value of fixed rate liabilities, even though economically these liabilities are more valuable as rates rise.

Loans

(in billions)
June 30,

2007
Dec. 31,

2006
June 30,

2006
Period-end:
Total $ 38.4 $ 37.8 $ 35.7
Non-margin 33.2 32.7 30.6
Margin 5.2 5.1 5.1
Quarterly average:
Total 37.3 35.3 33.7
Non-margin 31.8 30.1 28.2
Margin 5.5 5.2 5.5

(in billions) 2007 2006
YTD average:
Total $ 36.6 $ 32.8
Non-margin 31.1 27.2
Margin 5.5 5.6
The following table provides additional details on our credit exposures and outstandings for continuing operations at June 30, 2007 in
comparison to Dec. 31, 2006.
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June 30, 2007 Dec. 31, 2006

(in billions) Loans

Unfunded

commitments
Total

exposure Loans
Unfunded

commitments
Total

exposure
Non-margin:
Financial institutions $ 18.7 $ 28.3 $ 47.0 $ 17.4 $ 27.5 $ 44.9
Corporate 4.0 19.4 23.4 4.1 19.8 23.9
Subtotal 22.7 47.7 70.4 21.5 47.3 68.8
Consumer 4.2 0.5 4.7 4.3 0.5 4.8
Leasing financings 4.9 0.1 5.0 5.5 0.1 5.6
Commercial real estate 1.4 1.3 2.7 1.4 1.4 2.8
Subtotal non-margin loans 33.2 49.6 82.8 32.7 49.3 82.0
Margin loans 5.2 � 5.2 5.1 � 5.1
Total $ 38.4 $ 49.6 $ 88.0 $ 37.8 $ 49.3 $ 87.1
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Total loans were $38.4 billion at June 30, 2007, compared with $37.8 billion at Dec. 31, 2006. The increase in total loans from Dec. 31, 2006
primarily reflects increased lending to financial institutions. Average total loans were $37.3 billion in the second quarter of 2007, compared with
$33.7 billion in the second quarter of 2006. The increase in average loans from June 30, 2006 results from increased overdrafts related to
custody business and broker-dealer loans.

Financial institutions

The financial institutions portfolio exposure was $47.0 billion at June 30, 2007, compared to $44.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2006. The increase in
exposure from Dec. 31, 2006 reflects greater activity in the capital markets in the first half of 2007, which drove increased demands for credit
from financial institutions. These exposures are of high quality with 85% meeting the investment grade equivalent criteria of our rating system.
These exposures are generally short-term, with 77% expiring within one year and are frequently secured. For example, mortgage banking,
securities industry, and investment managers often borrow against marketable securities held in custody.

Exposure to banks is largely to investment grade counterparties in developed countries. The non-investment grade bank exposures are short term
in nature supporting our global trade finance and dollar clearing businesses in developing countries globally. As a conservative measure, our
internal credit rating classification for international counterparties caps the rating based upon the sovereign rating of the country where the
counterparty resides regardless of the credit rating of the counterparty or the underlying collateral.

The asset manager portfolio exposures are high quality with 83% meeting our investment grade equivalent ratings criteria. These exposures are
generally short term liquidity facilities with the vast majority to regulated mutual funds and overdrafts that have since been repaid.

Our mortgage banking exposures are 70% investment grade with the balance of our exposure extended on a secured basis. We have also
purchased $200 million of credit protection related to this portfolio

The diversity of the portfolio is shown in the accompanying table:

June 30, 2007 Dec. 31, 2006

(in billions) Loans

Unfunded

commitments

Total

exposure

% Inv.

grade

% due

<1 year Loans
Unfunded

commitments
Total

exposure
Lending division:
Banks $ 6.8 $ 5.1 $ 11.9 68% 87% $ 5.7 $ 5.5 $ 11.2
Securities industry 5.7 4.7 10.4 84 92 6.0 5.4 11.4
Insurance 0.2 6.3 6.5 100 47 0.6 6.1 6.7
Government 0.1 8.2 8.3 100 64 0.1 6.7 6.8
Asset managers 5.6 2.0 7.6 83 87 4.7 1.9 6.6
Mortgage banks 0.2 0.7 0.9 70 48 0.2 0.7 0.9
Endowments 0.1 1.3 1.4 100 51 0.1 1.2 1.3
Total $ 18.7 $ 28.3 $ 47.0 85% 77% $ 17.4 $ 27.5 $ 44.9
Corporate

The corporate portfolio exposure decreased to $23.4 billion at June 30, 2007 from $23.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2006. Approximately 75% of the
portfolio is investment grade while 13% of the portfolio matures within one year.
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June 30, 2007 Dec. 31, 2006

(in billions) Loans
Unfunded

commitments
Total

exposure
% Inv.
grade

% due
<1 year Loans

Unfunded
commitments

Total
exposure

Lending division:
Media $ 0.8 $ 1.6 $ 2.4 73% 9% $ 1.2 $ 2.0 $ 3.2
Cable 0.1 0.4 0.5 75 � 0.2 0.4 0.6
Telecom � 0.4 0.4 88 � � 0.3 0.3
Subtotal 0.9 2.4 3.3 75 7 1.4 2.7 4.1
Energy 0.7 5.2 5.9 87 6 0.6 5.0 5.6
Retailing 0.1 2.1 2.2 84 23 0.1 2.3 2.4
Automotive (a) 0.1 1.0 1.1 58 39 0.1 1.0 1.1
Healthcare 0.4 1.6 2.0 79 10 0.5 1.8 2.3
Other (b) 1.8 7.1 8.9 66 16 1.4 7.0 8.4
Total $ 4.0 $ 19.4 $ 23.4 75% 13% $ 4.1 $ 19.8 $ 23.9
(a) During the third quarter of 2005, we eliminated the automotive division and transferred the customers to the other geographic lending

divisions. The amounts in the table were constructed for analytical purposes.
(b) Diversified portfolio of industries and geographies.
We continue to seek to selectively reduce automotive exposures given ongoing weakness in the domestic automotive industry. Total exposures
reported in the Automotive Division were down $68 million at June 30, 2007 compared with Dec. 31, 2006. At June 30, 2007, this broadly
defined industry portfolio consisted of exposures of $188 million to Big Three automotive manufacturing companies, $185 million to finance
subsidiaries, $358 million to highly rated asset-backed securitization vehicles, $192 million to suppliers, and $130 million of other.

At June 30, 2007, our exposure to the airline industry, consisted of a $294 million leasing portfolio, including a $17 million real estate lease
exposure. At June 30, 2007, the airline-leasing portfolio consisted of $91 million to major U.S. carriers, $141 million to foreign airlines and
$62 million to U.S. regionals.

During the first half of 2007, the airline industry continued to face difficult operating conditions. The industry�s history of capacity problems, as
well as higher oil prices continued to have a dampening effect on aircraft values in the secondary market. Because of these factors, we continue
to maintain a sizable allowance for loan losses against these exposures and to closely monitor the portfolio.

Counterparty risk ratings profile

The table below summarizes the risk ratings of our foreign exchange and interest rate derivative counterparty credit exposure for the past year.

Counterparty risk ratings profile June 30,
2007

March 31,
2007

Dec. 31,
2006

Sept. 30,
2006

June 30,
2006

Rating (a):
AAA to AA- 71% 75% 76% 77% 77%
A+ to A- 13 13 12 10 10
BBB+ to BBB- 9 6 6 7 6
Noninvestment grade 7 6 6 6 7
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
(a) Represents credit rating agency equivalent of internal credit ratings.
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Nonperforming assets

Nonperforming assets

(dollar amounts in millions)
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007
Dec. 31,

2006
June 30,

2006
Loans:
Commercial $ 20 $ 18 $ 28 $ 10
Foreign 6 9 9 10
Total nonperforming loans 26 27 37 20
Other assets owned 1 2 1 12
Total nonperforming assets $ 27 $ 29 $ 38 $ 32
Nonperforming assets ratio 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Allowance for loan losses/nonperforming loans 1,084.6 1,074.1 775.7 1,685.0
Allowance for loan losses/nonperforming assets 1,044.4 1,000.0 755.3 1,053.1
Total allowance for credit losses/nonperforming loans 1,596.2 1,574.1 1,181.1 2,400.0
Total allowance for credit losses/nonperforming assets 1,537.0 1,465.5 1,150.0 1,500.0
The sequential quarter decrease in nonperforming assets primarily reflects the paydown of a foreign commercial loan.

Activity in nonperforming assets

Nonperforming assets

Quarterly activity

(in millions)
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007
Dec. 31,

2006
June 30,

2006
Balance at beginning of period $ 29 $ 38 $ 38 $ 25
Additions 2 10 8 12
Charge-offs � � (2) �
Paydowns/sales (4) (19) (6) (5)
Balance at end of period $ 27 $ 29 $ 38 $ 32
Interest income would have been increased by $0.9 million and $0.3 million for the second quarters of 2007 and 2006 if loans on nonaccrual
status at June 30, 2007 and 2006 had been performing for the entire period. On a year-to-date basis, interest income would have increased by
$1.3 million and $0.7 million for 2007 and 2006 had loans on nonaccrual status been performing for the entire period.

Impaired loans

The following table sets forth information about our impaired loans. We use the discounted cash flow, collateral value, or market price methods
for valuing its impaired loans.

Impaired loans

(in millions)
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007
Dec. 31,

2006
June 30,

2006
Impaired loans with an allowance $ 15 $ 17 $ 8 $ 12
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Impaired loans without an allowance (a) � � 19 �
Total impaired loans $ 15 $ 17 $ 27 $ 12
Allowance for impaired loans (b) $ 2 $ 2 $ 1 $ 3
Average balance of impaired loans during the quarter 16 25 22 15
Interest income recognized on impaired loans during the quarter 0.2 0.1 0.5 �
(a) When the discounted cash flows, collateral value or market price equals or exceeds the carrying value of the loan, then the loan does not

require an allowance under the accounting standard related to impaired loans.
(b) The allowance for impaired loans is included in the our allowance for credit losses.
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Allowance

(dollar amounts in millions)
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007
Dec. 31,

2006
June 30,

2006
Margin loans $ 5,188 $ 5,133 $ 5,167 $ 5,096
Non-margin loans 33,216 33,156 32,626 30,554
Total loans $ 38,404 $ 38,289 $ 37,793 $ 35,650
Allowance for loan losses $ 282 $ 290 $ 287 $ 337
Allowance for lending-related commitments 133 135 150 143
Total allowance for credit losses $ 415 $ 425 $ 437 $ 480
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans 0.73% 0.76% 0.76% 0.95%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of non-margin loans 0.85 0.87 0.88 1.10
Total allowance for credit losses as a percent of total loans 1.08 1.11 1.16 1.35
Total allowance for credit losses as a percent of non-margin loans 1.25 1.28 1.34 1.57
The total allowance for credit losses was $415 million, or 1.08% of total loans at June 30, 2007, compared with $480 million, or 1.35% of total
loans at June 30, 2006, $425 million, or 1.11% of total loans at March 31, 2007 and $437 million, or 1.16% of total loans at Dec. 31, 2006. The
decline in the allowance from the second quarter of 2006 reflects the continued strong credit quality of our loan portfolio.

We have $5.2 billion of secured margin loans on our balance sheet at June 30, 2007. We have rarely suffered a loss on these types of loans and
do not allocate any of our allowance for credit losses to these loans. As a result, we believe the ratio of total allowance for credit losses to
non-margin loans is a more appropriate metric to measure the adequacy of the reserve.

The ratio of the total allowance for credit losses to non-margin loans was 1.25% at June 30, 2007, compared with 1.57% at June 30, 2006, 1.28%
at March 31, 2007 and 1.34% at Dec. 31, 2006, reflecting improvement in the credit quality since the second quarter of 2006. The ratio of the
allowance for loan losses to nonperforming assets was 1,044% at June 30, 2007, compared with 1,053% at June 30, 2006, 1,000% at March 31,
2007, and 755% at Dec. 31, 2006.

The allowance for loan losses and the allowance for lending-related commitments consists of four elements:

� an allowance for impaired credits (nonaccrual commercial credits over $1 million);

� an allowance for higher risk rated credits;

� an allowance for pass rated credits; and

� an unallocated allowance based on general economic conditions and risk factors in our individual markets.
The first element, impaired credits, is based on individual analysis of all nonperforming commercial credits over $1 million. The allowance is
measured by the difference between the recorded value of impaired loans and their fair value. Fair value is either the present value of the
expected future cash flows from borrower, the market value of the loan, or the fair value of the collateral.

The second element, higher risk rated credits, is based on the assignment of loss factors for each specific risk category of higher risk credits. We
rate each credit in our portfolio that exceeds $1 million and assign the credits to specific risk pools. A potential loss factor is assigned to each
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pool and an amount is included in the allowance equal to the product of the amount of the loan in the pool and the risk factor. Reviews of higher
risk rated loans are conducted quarterly and each loan rating is updated as necessary. We prepare a loss migration analysis and compare our
actual loss experience to the loss factors on an annual basis to attempt to ensure the accuracy of the loss factors assigned to each pool.

The third element, pass rated credits, is based on our expected loss model. Borrowers are assigned to pools based on their credit ratings. The
expected loss for each loan in a pool incorporates the borrower�s credit rating, loss given default rating and maturity. The credit rating is
dependent upon the borrower�s probability of default. The loss given default incorporates a recovery expectation. Borrower ratings are reviewed
semi-annually at a minimum and are periodically mapped to third party, including rating agency and default and recovery, data bases to ensure
ongoing consistency
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and validity. Commercial loans over $1 million are individually analyzed before being assigned a credit rating. We also apply this technique to
our leasing and consumer portfolios.

The fourth element, the unallocated allowance, is based on management�s judgment regarding the following factors:

� Economic conditions including duration of the current cycle;

� Past experience including recent loss experience;

� Credit quality trends;

� Collateral values;

� Volume, composition, and growth of the loan portfolio;

� Specific credits and industry conditions;

� Results of bank regulatory and internal credit exams;

� Actions by the Federal Reserve Board;

� Delay in receipt of information to evaluate loans or confirm existing credit deterioration; and

� Geopolitical issues and their impact on the economy.
Based on an evaluation of these four elements, including individual credits, historical credit losses, and global economic factors, we have
allocated our allowance for credit losses on a continuing operations basis as follows:

Allowance for credit losses June 30,
2007

March 31,
2007

Dec. 31,
2006

June 30,
2006

Domestic:
Real estate 2% 2% 2% 1%
Commercial 63 64 67 69
Consumer 6 6 6 5
Foreign 1 1 2 2
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Unallocated 28 27 23 23
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%
The above allocation is inherently judgmental, and the entire allowance for credit losses is available to absorb credit losses regardless of the
nature of the loss.

The percentage of the allowance for credit losses that is unallocated increased to 28% at June 30, 2007 from 27% at March 31, 2007 and 23% at
December 31, 2006. The increase from year end reflects various factors in the current credit environment, including potential spillover into other
credit markets from the distress in the sub-prime mortgage markets.

Deposits

Total deposits were $81.4 billion at June 30, 2007, compared with $62.1 billion at Dec. 31, 2006. The increase from Dec. 31, 2006 was primarily
due to growth in the securities servicing businesses and the Acquired Corporate Trust Business. Noninterest-bearing deposits were $20.6 billion
at June 30, 2007, compared with $19.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2006. Interest-bearing deposits were $60.8 billion at June 30, 2007, compared with
$42.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2006.

Liquidity and dividends

We maintain our liquidity through the management of our assets and liabilities, utilizing worldwide financial markets. The diversification of
liabilities reflects our efforts to maintain flexibility of funding sources under changing market conditions. Stable core deposits from our
securities servicing businesses and asset management and wealth management businesses are generated through our diversified network and
managed with the use of trend studies and deposit pricing. The use of derivative products such as interest rate swaps and financial futures
enhances liquidity by enabling us to issue long-term liabilities with limited exposure to interest rate risk. Liquidity also results from the
maintenance of a portfolio of assets which can be easily sold and the monitoring of unfunded loan commitments, thereby reducing unanticipated
funding requirements. Liquidity is managed on both a consolidated basis and at The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation parent company
(�Parent�).

Non-core sources of funds such as money market rate accounts, certificates of deposits greater than $100,000, federal funds purchased, and other
borrowings were $12.7 billion and $14.1 billion on an average basis for the first six months of 2007 and 2006, respectively. Average foreign
deposits, primarily from our European-based securities servicing business, were $38.5 billion and
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$31.4 billion for the first six months of 2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in foreign deposits reflects greater liquidity from our corporate
trust and custody businesses. Domestic savings and other time deposits were $1.1 billion on an average basis for the first six months of 2007
compared to $1.3 billion for the first six months of 2006. On a year-to-date basis, average payables to customers and broker-dealers decreased to
$5.0 billion in 2007 from $5.1 billion in 2006. The decline in payables to customers and broker-dealers primarily reflects lower customer
balances. Long-term debt averaged $9.5 billion and $8.1 billion for the first six months of 2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in
long-term debt reflects the building of liquidity to pay debt maturing in 2007. A significant reduction in our securities servicing businesses
would reduce our access to deposits. On a year-to-date basis, average noninterest-bearing deposits increased to $15.1 billion in 2007 from
$10.5 billion in 2006, reflecting organic growth in securities servicing businesses and the acquisition of the Acquired Corporate Trust Business.

Our transaction with JPMorgan Chase altered the composition of the balance sheet. When the Acquired Corporate Trust Business is fully
integrated in 2007, approximately $14 billion of U.S. dollar retail deposits will have been replaced with between $11 billion and $14 billion of
institutional corporate trust deposits. Most of the deposits related to the Acquired Corporate Trust Business completed the transition to us in the
second quarter of 2007. Approximately $1 billion of deposits related to the Acquired Corporate Trust Business have not yet transitioned to us.
These deposits will transition to us as regulatory approval is received to operate in certain foreign locations. Until the transition is complete,
JPMorgan Chase will pay us for the net economic value of these deposits. In the second quarter of 2007, we recorded $13 million of net
economic value payments in fee and other revenue, compared with $25 million in the first quarter of 2007 and $23 million in the fourth quarter
of 2006. On the asset side of the balance sheet, approximately $8 billion of retail and middle market loans included in the sale of the Retail
Business have been replaced with liquid assets and securities. Goodwill and intangibles related to the Acquired Corporate Trust Business were
approximately $2.3 billion.

The Parent has four major sources of liquidity:

� dividends from its subsidiaries;

� the commercial paper market;

� a revolving credit agreement with third party financial institutions; and

� access to the capital markets.
At June 30, 2007, the Bank can pay dividends of approximately $1,133 million to the Parent without the need for regulatory waiver. This
dividend capacity would increase in the remainder of 2007 to the extent of the Bank�s net income less dividends. At June 30, 2007, nonbank
subsidiaries of the Parent have liquid assets of approximately $255 million. These assets could be liquidated and the proceeds delivered by
dividend or loan to the Parent.

For the quarter ended June 30, 2007, the Parent�s quarterly average commercial paper borrowings were $69 million compared with $510 million
for the quarter ended June 30, 2006. The Parent had cash of $2,950 million at June 30, 2007, compared with $515 million at June 30, 2006 and
$2,097 million at March 31, 2007. Net of commercial paper outstanding, the Parent�s cash position at June 30, 2007 increased by $2,440 million
compared with June 30, 2006. The Parent has been increasing cash in anticipation of the repayment of long-term debt that matures in the next
twelve months.

On Oct. 10, 2006, we entered into a new $250 million credit agreement with 11 financial institutions. The fee on this facility depends on our
credit rating and at June 30, 2007 was six basis points. The credit agreement requires us to maintain:
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� shareholders� equity of $5 billion;

� a ratio of Tier I capital plus the allowance for credit losses to nonperforming assets of at least 2.5;

� a double leverage ratio less than 1.3;

� and adequate capitalization of all our banks for regulatory purposes.
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This line of credit matures in October 2011. There were no borrowings under this line of credit at June 30, 2007. The line was reduced to
$226 million reflecting our acquisition of one of the participants, Mellon Bank, N.A., pursuant to the merger with Mellon.

We also have the ability to access the capital markets. Access to the capital markets is partially dependent on our credit ratings, which as of
July 31, 2007 were as follows:

Debt ratings at July 31, 2007

Standard

&

Poor�s Moody�s Fitch

Dominion

Bond

Rating

Service
Parent:
Commercial paper A-1 P-1 F1+ R-1

(middle)
Subordinated long-term debt A Aa3 A+ A (high)
Senior long-term debt A+ Aa2 AA- AA (low)

The Bank of New York:
Long-term deposits AA- Aaa AA AA

Mellon Bank, N.A.:
Long-term deposits AA- Aaa AA AA
Subordinated debt A+ Aa1 A+ AA (low)

Outlook Stable Stable Positive Positive
Moody�s upgraded our senior debt ratings for the Bank from Aa2 to Aaa in March 2007 and for the Parent from Aa3 to Aa2 in April 2007. In
June 2007, Dominion Bond Rating Service upgraded the long-term ratings of the Parent and its subsidiaries to Positive from Stable and the
short-term rating of the Bank to R-1 (high) from R-1 (middle).

In July 2007, the Dominion Bond Rating Service upgraded Mellon Bank, N.A.�s long-term deposits from AA (low) to AA and subordinated debt
from A (high) to AA (low).

The Parent�s major uses of funds are payment of dividends, principal and interest on its borrowings, acquisitions, and additional investment in its
subsidiaries.

The Parent has $700 million of long-term debt that will become due in 2007 subsequent to June 30, 2007 and $1,450 million of long-term debt
due in 2008. We have $250 million of subordinated debt that will become callable and steps up to a higher interest rate in September 2007 and
$400 million of subordinated debt that will become callable and steps up to a higher interest rate in 2008. We expect that we will call this debt
when the interest rate steps up. In addition, the Parent periodically has the option to call $338 million of subordinated debt in 2007, which it will
call and refinance if market conditions are favorable. The Parent expects to refinance any debt it repays by issuing a combination of senior and
subordinated debt.

We have $800 million of preferred trust securities that are callable in 2007. These securities qualify as Tier I Capital. All of our preferred trust
securities are swapped to floating rate. We have not yet decided if we will call these securities. The decision to call will be based on interest
rates, the availability of cash and capital, and regulatory conditions. If we call the preferred trust securities, we expect to replace them with new
preferred trust securities or senior or subordinated debt. See discussion of qualification of trust-preferred securities as capital in �Capital.�
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Double leverage is the ratio of investment in subsidiaries divided by our consolidated equity plus preferred trust securities. Our double leverage
ratio at June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 was 101.41% and 102.19%, respectively. Our target double leverage ratio is a maximum of 120%. The
double leverage ratio is monitored by regulators and rating agencies and is an important constraint on our ability to invest in our subsidiaries to
expand our businesses.

Pershing LLC, an indirect subsidiary of BNY Mellon, has committed and uncommitted lines of credit in place for liquidity purposes. The
committed line of credit of $500 million with four financial institutions matures in March 2008. There were no borrowings under this line of
credit during the second quarter of 2007. Pershing LLC has three
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separate uncommitted lines of credit amounting to $1 billion in aggregate. Average daily borrowing under these lines was $32 million, in
aggregate, during the second quarter of 2007.

Pershing Limited, an indirect U.K.-based subsidiary of BNY Mellon, has committed and uncommitted lines in place for liquidity purposes. The
committed lines of credit of $275 million with four financial institutions matures in March 2008. There were no borrowings against this line of
credit during the second quarter of 2007. Pershing Limited has three separate uncommitted lines of credit amounting to $300 million in
aggregate. Average daily borrowing under these lines was $131 million, in aggregate, during the second quarter of 2007.

Statement of cash flows

Cash provided by operating activities was $1.0 billion for the first six months of 2007, compared with $2.6 billion provided by operating
activities for the six months ended June 30, 2006. The source of funds in 2007 was principally due to trading activities and net income. The
source of funds in 2006 was principally due to the changes in accruals and other and net income.

In the first six months of 2007, cash used for investing activities was $23.2 billion as compared to cash used for investing activities in the first
six months of 2006 of $6.3 billion. In the first six months of 2007, purchases of securities available-for-sale, change in interest-bearing deposits
and changes in federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements were a significant use of funds. Significant uses of funds in
the first six months of 2006 were purchases of securities available-for-sale, net principal disbursed on loans to customers, and change in
interest-bearing deposits with banks.

Through June 30, 2007, cash provided by financing activities was $22.6 billion, compared to $3.8 billion provided by financing activities in the
first six months of 2006. In the first six months of 2007, deposits were a significant source of funds. Included in these deposits are approximately
$10 billion that transitioned to us related to the Acquired Corporate Trust Business. Primary sources of funds in the first six months of 2006
included deposits and net proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt.

Capital

Shareholders� equity was $11,829 million at June 30, 2007, compared with $11,527 million at March 31, 2007, and $11,593 million at Dec. 31,
2006. During the second quarter of 2007, we retained $277 million of earnings. In July 2007, BNY Mellon declared a quarterly common stock
dividend of 24 cents per share, payable on Aug. 3, 2007, to shareholders of record as of the close of business on July 25, 2007.

In the second quarter of 2007, we issued $97 million of callable medium-term subordinated notes bearing interest at rates from 5.65% to 6.20%.
The notes are due in 2022 and 2032 and are callable by us after three to five years. The notes qualify as Tier II capital.

In the second quarter of 2007, we also issued $1,250 million of senior holding company debt. The issuance consisted of $500 million at a
floating rate of 3-month LIBOR plus 1.50 basis points and $750 million of extendible notes at an initial rate of one-month LIBOR minus 3 basis
points.

Regulators establish certain levels of capital for bank holding companies and banks, including BNY Mellon and the Bank, in accordance with
established quantitative measurements. For the Parent to maintain its status as a financial holding company, the Bank must, among other things,
qualify as well capitalized. In addition, major bank holding companies such as the Parent are expected by the regulators to be well capitalized.
As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, Parent and the Bank were considered well capitalized on the basis of the ratios (defined by regulation) of Total
and Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets and leverage (Tier I capital to average assets), which are shown as follows:
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June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006 Consolidated
Well

Capitalized
Adequately
Capitalized

Consolidated Bank Consolidated Bank Targets Guidelines Guidelines
Tier I (a) 8.09% 7.95% 7.96% 8.60% 8.00% 6% 4%
Total capital (b) 12.07 10.87 12.06 11.39 10 8
Leverage 6.37 6.33 6.22 6.82 5 3-5
Adjusted tangible common equity
(c) 4.53 4.84 5.19 6.14 N/A N/A
(a) Tier I capital consists, generally, of common equity, trust-preferred securities (subject to limitations in 2009), and certain qualifying

preferred stock, less goodwill and most other intangibles.
(b) Total Capital consists of Tier I capital plus Tier II capital. Tier II capital consists, generally, of certain qualifying preferred stock and

subordinated debt and a portion of the loan loss allowance.
(c) Adjusted for deferred tax liabilities associated with non-tax deductible identifiable intangible assets.
N/A - Not applicable.

In a non-taxable business combination, such as our merger with Mellon, deferred tax liabilities are recorded in relation to identifiable intangible
assets. The recording of this deferred tax liability results in an increase in goodwill equal to the amount of the liability. Bank regulators and some
rating agencies and analysts adjust equity upward for the amount of this deferred tax liability since it is a liability for accounting purposes and
will never require a cash settlement. As a result, we believe Tier I and adjusted tangible common equity should be our primary capital metrics.

The Tier I and adjusted tangible common equity ratios vary depending on the size of the balance sheet at quarter-end and the impact of interest
rates on unrealized gains and losses among other factors. The balance sheet size fluctuates from quarter to quarter based on levels of customer
and market activity. In general, when servicing clients are more actively trading securities, deposit balances and the balance sheet as a whole, are
higher to finance these activities. For quarter-ends in 2007, the size of the balance sheet will be impacted by the receipt of approval to open new
subsidiaries related to the Acquired Corporate Trust Business and the merger with Mellon.

Our Tier I capital and Total capital ratios were 8.09% and 12.07% at June 30, 2007, compared with 7.96% and 12.06% at June 30, 2006. The
leverage ratio was 6.37% at June 30, 2007, compared with 6.22% at June 30, 2006. Our adjusted tangible common equity as a percentage of total
assets was 4.53% at June 30, 2007, compared with 5.19% at June 30, 2006, and 5.47% at March 31, 2007.

A billion dollar change in risk-weighted assets changes the Tier I ratio by 9 basis points while a $100 million change in common equity changes
the Tier I ratio by 12 basis points.

A billion dollar change in assets changes the adjusted tangible common equity ratio by 4 basis points while a $100 million change in common
equity changes the adjusted tangible common equity ratio by 8 basis points.

At July 31, 2007, we had approximately $2 billion of trust preferred securities outstanding. On March 1, 2005, the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System (the �FRB�) adopted a final rule that allows the continued limited inclusion of trust preferred securities in the Tier I
capital of bank holding companies. Under the final rule, we will be subject to a 15% limit in the amount of trust preferred securities that can be
included in Tier I capital, net of goodwill, less any related deferred tax liability. Amounts in excess of these limits will continue to be included in
Tier II capital. The final rule provides a five-year transition period, ending March 31, 2009, for application of quantitative limits. Under the
transition rules and the final rules, we expect all our trust preferred securities to continue to qualify as Tier I capital. Both the consolidated The
Bank of New York Mellon Corporation and the Bank are expected to remain �well capitalized� under the final rule.

The following table presents the components of our risk-based capital:
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Risk-based capital

(in millions)
June 30,

2007
June 30,

2006
Shareholders� equity $ 11,829 $ 10,056
Trust preferred securities 1,150 1,150
Adjustments:
Goodwill and intangibles (6,405) (4,775)
Other 304 136
Tier I capital 6,878 6,567
Qualifying unrealized equity security gains 4 1
Qualifying subordinated debt 2,967 2,821
Qualifying allowance for loan losses 415 568
Tier II capital 3,386 3,390
Total risk-based capital $ 10,264 $ 9,957
Total risk-adjusted assets $ 85,006 $ 82,544
Trading activities

The fair value and notional amounts of our financial instruments held for trading purposes at June 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Trading account June 30, 2007 2Q07 average
Notional
Amount

Fair value Fair value
(in millions) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Interest rate contracts:
Futures and forward contracts $ 56,635 $ 37 $ � $ 19 $ �
Swaps 351,606 1,575 1,306 1,744 1,472
Written options 212,935 � 657 � 608
Purchased options 182,041 194 � 203 �
Foreign exchange contracts:
Swaps 2,335 � � � �
Written options 9,649 � 147 � 132
Purchased options 9,879 88 � 72 �
Commitments to purchase and sell foreign exchange 131,803 186 103 233 155
Debt securities � 1,071 278 1,314 247
Credit derivatives 1,974 5 5 5 6
Equities 16,313 215 116 253 235
Commodity and other derivatives 268 3 � 4 �
Total trading account $ 3,374 $ 2,612 $ 3,847 $ 2,855
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Trading account June 30, 2006 2Q06 average
Notional
Amount

Fair value Fair value
(in millions) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Interest rate contracts:
Futures and forward contracts $ 93,353 $ 57 $ � $ 44 $ �
Swaps 283,612 1,709 1,208 2,045 1,488
Written options 214,899 � 1,011 � 1,016
Purchased options 185,068 203 � 199 �
Foreign exchange contracts:
Swaps 2,640 � � � �
Written options 10,137 � 84 � 77
Purchased options 12,801 237 � 198 �
Commitments to purchase and sell foreign exchange 90,948 202 303 209 334
Debt securities � 3,638 295 4,452 233
Credit derivatives 1,394 3 8 2 8
Equities 11,459 16 29 81 62
Total trading account $ 6,065 $ 2,938 $ 7,230 $ 3,218
Our trading activities are focused on acting as a market maker for our customers. The risk from these market making activities and from our own
positions is managed by our traders and limited in total exposure as described below.

We manage trading risk through a system of position limits, a value at risk (VAR) methodology-based on a Monte Carlo simulation, stop loss
advisory triggers, and other market sensitivity measures. Risk is monitored and reported to senior management by a separate unit on a daily
basis. Based on certain assumptions, the VAR methodology is designed to capture the potential overnight pre-tax dollar loss from adverse
changes in fair values of all trading positions. The calculation assumes a one-day holding period for most instruments, utilizes a 99% confidence
level, and incorporates the non-linear characteristics of options. The VAR model is used to calculate economic capital, which is allocated to the
business units for computing risk-adjusted performance. As VAR methodology does not evaluate risk attributable to extraordinary financial,
economic or other occurrences, the risk assessment process includes a number of stress scenarios based upon the risk factors in the portfolio and
management�s assessment of market conditions. Additional stress scenarios based upon historic market events are also tested. Stress tests by their
design incorporate the impact of reduced liquidity and the breakdown of observed correlations. The results of these stress tests are reviewed
weekly with senior management.

The following tables indicate the calculated VAR amounts for the trading portfolio for the periods indicated.

VAR 2nd Quarter 2007

(in millions) Average Minimum Maximum
June 30,

2007
Interest rate $ 4.3 $ 2.5 $ 6.1 $ 3.3
Foreign exchange 1.3 0.8 2.6 1.1
Equity 3.0 1.1 5.4 4.9
Credit derivatives 1.0 0.5 1.7 0.7
Commodities 2.4 1.3 3.7 1.7
Diversification (2.7) N/M N/M (2.2)
Overall portfolio 9.3 7.5 11.7 9.5

VAR Year-to-date 2007
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(in millions) Average Minimum Maximum
Interest rate $ 3.7 $ 1.9 $ 6.1
Foreign exchange 1.2 0.6 2.6
Equity 2.5 0.8 6.6
Credit derivatives 1.0 0.5 1.7
Commodities 2.1 � 3.7
Diversification (2.4) N/M N/M
Overall portfolio 8.1 3.0 11.7
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

VAR 1st Quarter 2007

(in millions) Average Minimum Maximum
March 31,

2007
Interest rate $ 3.2 $ 1.9 $ 4.9 $ 4.5
Foreign exchange 1.2 0.6 2.1 1.6
Equity 2.0 0.8 6.6 1.8
Credit derivatives 0.9 0.6 1.4 1.3
Commodities 1.7 � 3.3 3.3
Diversification (2.0) N/M N/M (3.4)
Overall portfolio 7.0 3.0 10.9 9.1

VAR 2nd Quarter 2006

(in millions) Average Minimum Maximum
June 30,

2006
Interest rate $ 3.3 $ 2.1 $ 7.6 $ 3.0
Foreign exchange 1.1 0.6 1.8 1.2
Equity 1.0 0.5 3.7 2.3
Credit derivatives 1.3 0.9 1.6 1.5
Diversification (1.7) N/M N/M (2.9)
Overall portfolio 5.0 3.9 6.7 5.1

VAR Year-to-date 2006
(in millions) Average Minimum Maximum
Interest rate $ 3.0 $ 2.0 $ 7.6
Foreign exchange 1.1 0.6 1.8
Equity 0.9 0.5 3.7
Credit derivatives 1.1 0.6 1.6
Diversification (1.5) N/M N/M
Overall portfolio 4.6 3.3 6.7
N/M -Because the minimum and maximum may occur on different days for different risk components, it is not meaningful to compute a portfolio

diversification effect.
During the second quarter of 2007, interest rate risk generated approximately 31% of average VAR, credit derivatives risk generated 11% of
average VAR, foreign exchange risk accounted for 10% of average VAR, commodities risk generated 26% of average VAR, and equity risk
generated 22% of average VAR. The commodities VAR reflects the option contract we use to hedge our Section 29 synthetic fuel tax credits.
During the second quarter of 2007, our daily trading loss did not exceed our calculated VAR amounts on any given day.

The following table of total daily revenue or loss captures trading volatility and shows the number of trading days in which our trading revenues
fell within particular ranges during the past year:
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Distribution of revenues (a) Quarter ended

(in millions)
June 30,

2006
Sept. 30,

2006
Dec. 31,

2006
March 31,

2007
June 30,

2007
Number of occurrences

Revenue range:
Less than $(2.5) � � � � �
$(2.5) - $0 2 3 4 6 4
$0 - $2.5 39 52 45 33 33
$2.5 - $5.0 21 8 11 20 24
More than $5.0 2 � 2 3 3
(a) Based on revenues before deducting share of joint venture partner, Susquehanna Trading.
Asset/liability management

Our asset/liability management activities include lending, investing in securities, accepting deposits, raising money as needed to fund assets, and
processing securities and other transactions. The market risks that arise from these activities are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. Our
primary market risk is exposure to movements in U.S. dollar interest rates and certain foreign currency interest rates. We actively manage
interest rate sensitivity. In addition to gap analysis, we use earnings simulation and discounted cash flow models to identify interest rate
exposures.

An earnings simulation model is the primary tool used to assess changes in pre-tax net interest revenue. The model incorporates management�s
assumptions regarding interest rates, balance changes on core deposits, and changes in the prepayment behavior of loans and securities, and the
impact of derivative financial instruments used for interest rate risk management purposes. These assumptions have been developed through a
combination of historical analysis and future expected pricing behavior. These assumptions are inherently uncertain, and, as a result, the
earnings simulation model cannot precisely estimate net interest revenue or the impact of higher or lower interest rates on net interest revenue.
Actual results may differ from projected results due to timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes and changes in market
conditions and management�s strategies, among other factors.

We evaluate the effect on earnings by running various interest rate ramp scenarios up and down from a baseline scenario, which assumes no
changes in interest rates. These scenarios are reviewed to examine the impact of large interest rate movements. Interest rate sensitivity is
quantified by calculating the change in pre-tax net interest revenue between the scenarios over a 12-month measurement period. The following
table shows net interest revenue sensitivity for pro forma Bank of New York Mellon:

Estimated changes in net interest revenue
Pro forma  

(dollar amounts in millions)
June 30, 2007        

$ %
up 200 bp vs. stable rate $ 47 1.8%
up 100 bp vs. stable rate 47 1.8
down 100 bp vs. stable rate (14) (0.5)
down 200 bp vs. stable rate (31) (1.2)
bp - basis point.

The pro forma data in the above table reflects legacy The Bank of New York, legacy Mellon and the swap with JPMorgan Chase as if the
transactions were fully integrated into the company on June 30, 2007. The swap with JPMorgan Chase resulted in a more liability-sensitive
balance sheet because corporate trust liabilities reprice more quickly than retail deposits. However, among other actions, we restructured our
investment portfolio to readjust our interest rate sensitivity.
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The baseline scenario�s Fed Funds rate in the June 30, 2007 analysis was 5.25%. The 100 basis point ramp scenarios assumes short-term rates
change 25 basis points in each of the next four quarters, while the 200 basis point ramp scenarios assumes a 50 basis point per quarter change.
Both the up 100 basis point and the up 200 basis point June 30, 2007 scenarios assume a steepening of the yield curve with 10-year rates rising
153 and 253 basis points, respectively. These scenarios do not reflect strategies that management could employ

50     The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

Edgar Filing: Bank of New York Mellon CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 81



Table of Contents

Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

to limit the impact as interest rate expectations change.

The previous table relies on certain critical assumptions including depositors� behavior related to interest rate fluctuations and the prepayment
and extension risk in certain of our assets. To the extent that actual behavior is different from that assumed in the models, there could be a
change in interest rate sensitivity.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Statistical information

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST YIELDS/RATES (a)

Quarter ended
June 30, 2007 March 31, 2007 June 30, 2006

(dollar amounts in millions)
Average
balance

Average
yields/rates

Average
balance

Average
yields/rates

Average
balance

Average
yields/rates

Assets
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-bearing deposits with banks
(primarily foreign) $ 20,558 4.54% $ 13,546 4.36% $ 12,432 3.88%
Federal funds sold and securities
under resale agreements 5,846 5.25 4,435 5.23 1,565 3.98
Margin loans 5,563 6.31 5,401 6.33 5,506 6.20
Non-margin loans:
Domestic offices 19,170 5.04 19,231 5.11 18,105 4.69
Foreign offices 12,584 5.70 11,321 5.85 10,121 5.44
Total non-margin loans 31,754 5.30 30,552 5.38 28,226 4.98
Securities
U.S. government obligations 87 4.90 86 4.95 216 4.24
U.S. government agency obligations 2,775 5.20 2,905 5.07 4,009 4.60
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions 77 8.65 86 8.22 109 8.13
Other securities 22,572 5.22 19,311 5.30 18,848 5.21
Trading securities 1,325 4.27 2,753 4.99 4,469 4.61
Total securities 26,836 5.17 25,141 5.25 27,651 5.03
Total interest-earning assets 90,557 5.15 79,075 5.22 75,380 4.88
Allowance for credit losses (290) (286) (344)
Cash and due from banks 2,631 2,424 3,089
Other assets 21,380 20,762 18,270
Assets of discontinued operations 45 66 13,993
Total assets $ 114,323 $ 102,041 $ 110,388
Liabilities and shareholders� equity
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Money market rate accounts $ 6,406 2.87% $ 6,169 2.98% $ 5,213 2.60%
Savings 423 1.92 416 1.85 456 2.01
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 &
over 2,679 5.23 3,133 5.43 4,105 5.05
Other time deposits 684 5.36 584 5.18 697 4.85
Foreign offices 43,418 3.64 33,560 3.67 32,544 3.10
Total interest-bearing deposits 53,610 3.64 43,862 3.70 43,015 3.24
Federal funds purchased and securities
under repurchase agreements 1,377 4.79 1,527 4.97 2,893 4.62
Other funds borrowed 2,321 4.22 1,870 2.88 2,323 3.82
Payables to customers and
broker-dealers 5,154 3.63 4,747 3.59 5,034 3.34
Long-term debt 10,042 5.38 8,888 5.42 8,146 5.15
Total interest-bearing liabilities 72,504 3.92 60,894 3.95 61,411 3.59
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Total noninterest-bearing deposits 15,334 14,903 10,869
Other liabilities 14,874 14,901 14,233
Liabilities of discontinued operations 45 66 13,993
Total liabilities 102,757 90,764 100,506
Shareholders� equity 11,566 11,277 9,882
Total liabilities and shareholders�
equity $ 114,323 $ 102,041 $ 110,388
Net interest margin:
Taxable equivalent basis 2.01% 2.18% 1.95%
(a) Average balances and rates have been impacted by allocations made to match assets of discontinued operations with liabilities of

discontinued operations.
Note: Interest and average yields/rates were calculated on a taxable equivalent basis, at tax rates approximating 35%, using dollar amounts in

thousands and actual number of days in the years, and are before the effect of reserve requirements.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST YIELDS/RATES (a)

Six months ended
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006

(dollar amounts in millions)
Average
balance

Average
yields/rates

Average
balance

Average
yields/rates

Assets
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-bearing deposits with banks (primarily foreign) $ 17,072 4.47% $ 11,036 3.76%
Federal funds sold and securities under resale agreements 5,144 5.24 1,625 3.81
Margin loans 5,482 6.32 5,580 5.87
Non-margin loans:
Domestic offices 19,200 5.09 17,219 4.64
Foreign offices 11,955 5.77 9,969 5.33
Total non-margin loans 31,155 5.35 27,188 4.90
Securities
U.S. government obligations 87 4.92 220 4.50
U.S. government agency obligations 2,840 5.14 3,981 4.53
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 81 8.43 113 8.09
Other securities 20,951 5.25 18,884 5.03
Trading securities 2,035 4.75 4,592 4.50
Total securities 25,994 5.21 27,790 4.88
Total interest-earning assets 84,847 5.20 73,219 4.77
Allowance for credit losses (288) (339)
Cash and due from banks 2,528 3,676
Other assets 21,130 17,568
Assets of discontinued operations 55 14,147
Total assets $ 108,272 $ 108,271
Liabilities and shareholders� equity
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Money market rate accounts $ 6,288 2.92% $ 5,319 2.45%
Savings 420 1.89 462 1.56
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 & over 2,905 5.34 4,176 4.83
Other time deposits 634 5.28 799 4.56
Foreign offices 38,516 3.66 31,388 2.96
Total interest-bearing deposits 48,763 3.67 42,144 3.09
Federal funds purchased and securities under repurchase agreements 1,451 4.89 2,432 4.45
Other funds borrowed 2,098 3.63 2,153 3.91
Payables to customers and broker-dealers 4,952 3.61 5,132 3.22
Long-term debt 9,468 5.41 8,079 4.98
Total interest-bearing liabilities 66,732 3.95 59,940 3.44
Total noninterest-bearing deposits 15,120 10,496
Other liabilities 14,943 13,803
Liabilities of discontinued operations 55 14,147
Total liabilities 96,850 98,386
Shareholders� equity 11,422 9,885
Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 108,272 $ 108,271
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Net interest margin:
Taxable equivalent basis 2.10% 1.95%
(a) Average balances and rates have been impacted by allocations made to match assets of discontinued operations with liabilities of

discontinued operations.
Note: Interest and average yields/rates were calculated on a taxable equivalent basis, at tax rates approximating 35%, using dollar amounts in

thousands and actual number of days in the years, and are before the effect of reserve requirements.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Supplemental information (pages 54 to 68)

Merger with Mellon

On July 1, 2007, we completed our merger with Mellon. Mellon is a global financial services company, headquartered in Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania, providing a broad range of financial products and services in domestic and selected international markets. Mellon is one of the
world�s leading providers of financial services for institutions, corporations and government bodies, as well as entities sponsored by them; and
high-net-worth individuals and families, family offices and charitable endowments, providing asset management, wealth management, asset
servicing, issuer services and treasury services. At June 30, 2007, Mellon had total assets of $43 billion, shareholders� equity of $5.2 billion,
assets under custody and administration of $5.5 trillion, and $929 billion of assets under management. For the first six months of 2007, Mellon
had total revenue of $2.9 billion and income from continuing operations of $524 million.

Due to the significance of the merger, we have included financial information for legacy Mellon. The following schedules are included for the
second quarter and first half of 2007:

� Financial highlights

� Income statement

� Balance sheet

� Business segments

� Average rates and balances
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Mellon Financial Corporation

Supplemental Information

Financial Highlights

Quarter ended Six months ended
(dollar amounts in millions, except per share amounts

and unless otherwise noted; common shares in

thousands)
June 30,

2007

March 31,

2007
June 30,

2006
June 30,

2007
June 30,

2006
Continuing operations:
Fee and other revenue $ 1,363 $ 1,280 $ 1,158 $ 2,643 $ 2,278
Net interest revenue 134 125 113 259 232
Total revenue $ 1,497 $ 1,405 $ 1,271 $ 2,902 $ 2,510
EPS from continuing operations:
GAAP $ .67 $ .58 $ .54 $ 1.25 $ 1.01
Non-GAAP adjusted (a) .69 .61 .54 1.30 1.04

Return on tangible common equity:
GAAP 52.5% 52.0% 48.8% 52.2% 45.7%
Non-GAAP adjusted (a) 53.8% 54.8% 48.8% 54.3% 47.1%

Return on equity:
GAAP 22.4% 20.8% 21.4% 21.6% 20.1%
Non-GAAP adjusted (a) 23.0% 21.9% 21.4% 22.5% 20.7%

Fee and other revenue as a percentage of total revenue (FTE) 91% 91% 91% 91% 91%
Annualized fee and other revenue per employee (in thousands)
(based on average headcount) $ 316 $ 305 $ 279 311 276

Non-U.S.:
Percent of revenue (FTE) 26% 25% 21% 26% 20%
Percent of pre-tax income (FTE) � non-GAAP adjusted(a) 25% 23% 20% 24% 17%

Pre-tax operating margin (FTE):
GAAP 16% 26% 26% 21% 25%
Non-GAAP adjusted (a) 30% 28% 26% 29% 26%

Net interest margin (FTE) (b)(c) 1.80% 1.79% 1.72% 1.79% 1.82%
Selected average balances (b):
Interest-earning assets $ 30,682 $ 29,196 $ 27,120 $ 29,943 $ 26,587
Total assets 42,707 41,042 39,104 41,879 38,314
Interest-bearing deposits 18,839 17,571 15,722 18,209 15,510
Noninterest-bearing deposits 8,668 8,397 8,362 8,533 8,318
Shareholders� equity 5,033 4,746 4,182 4,891 4,170

Average common shares and equivalents outstanding:
Basic 413,885 412,357 408,154 413,053 408,851
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Diluted 419,297 418,599 412,986 419,030 413,579

Period-end data
Assets under management (in billions) $ 929 $ 883 $ 755
Net inflows (for the quarter) (in billions) $ 16 $ 3 $ 21
Assets under custody and administration (in trillions) $ 5.5 $ 5.2 $ 4.6
Securities lending cash collateral (in billions) $ 234 $ 223 $ 151

Employees 17,400 17,100 16,700

Tier I capital ratio (d) 11.71% 12.89% 10.85%
Total (Tier I plus Tier II) capital ratio (d) 17.28% 18.89% 16.77%
Adjusted tangible shareholders� equity to assets ratio(d) 5.99% 5.75% 5.49%

Book value per common share $ 12.42 $ 11.76 $ 10.31
Dividends per share $ .22 $ .22 $ .22
Dividend yield 2.0% 2.0% 2.6%
Closing common stock price per share $ 44.00 $ 43.14 $ 34.43
Market capitalization $ 18,407 $ 17,961 $ 14,166
(a) Calculated excluding pre-tax charges associated with merger and integration expenses ($116 million), early redemption of junior

subordinated debentures ($46 million), exit costs associated with excess office space ($30 million), a litigation reserve charge ($5 million)
and the net benefit of a tax settlement and other discrete tax items ($122 million) in 2Q07; excluding merger and integration expense
($8 million) and a litigation reserve charge ($12 million) in 1Q07; and excluding payments, benefits and awards for Mellon�s former
chairman and chief executive officer pursuant to his employment agreement ($19 million) in 1Q06. The pre-tax margin for all periods
presented also excludes intangible amortization.

(b) Prior periods calculated on a continuing operations basis even though the balance sheet, in accordance with GAAP, is not restated for
discontinued operations.

(c) Includes fair value adjustments and the related deferred tax effect required by SFAS No. 115 in order to better harmonize Mellon�s
methodology with The Bank of New York�s.

(d) Includes discontinued operations.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

MELLON FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Supplemental Information

Consolidated Income Statement

Quarter ended Six months ended

(in millions, except per share amounts)
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007
June 30,

2006
June 30,

2007
June 30,

2006
Fee and other revenue
Securities servicing fees:
Asset servicing $ 281 $ 252 $ 244 $ 533 $ 468
Issuer services 48 52 54 100 102
Clearing and execution services 4 2 3 6 5
Total securities servicing fees 333 306 301 639 575
Asset and wealth management fees 678 650 527 1,328 1,027
Performance fees 42 35 48 77 106
Foreign exchange and other trading activities 59 55 74 114 135
Treasury services 66 66 68 132 138
Distribution and servicing 81 82 67 163 129
Investment income 38 25 10 63 38
Financing-related fees 8 11 11 19 26
Securities gains 3 � � 3 �
Other 55 50 52 105 104
Total fee and other revenue 1,363 1,280 1,158 2,643 2,278
Net interest revenue
Interest revenue 416 400 343 816 659
Interest expense 282 275 230 557 427
Net interest revenue 134 125 113 259 232
Provision for credit losses (3) 3 (3) � (2)
Net interest revenue after provision for credit losses 137 122 116 259 234
Noninterest expense
Staff 551 537 486 1,088 1,000
Professional, legal and other purchased services 121 115 114 236 218
Distribution and servicing 151 142 126 293 241
Net occupancy 91 56 58 147 117
Furniture and equipment 26 28 24 54 49
Software 20 18 21 38 41
Business development 35 28 28 63 53
Sub-custodian expenses 18 17 14 35 27
Communications 10 6 8 16 17
Other 117 81 72 198 135
Subtotal 1,140 1,028 951 2,168 1,898
Amortization of intangible assets 11 12 7 23 14
Merger and integration expense 116 8 � 124 �
Total noninterest expense 1,267 1,048 958 2,315 1,912
Income
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 233 354 316 587 600
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Provision (benefit) for income taxes (48) 111 93 63 184
Income from continuing operations 281 243 223 524 416
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations 1 11 14 12 28
Provision for income taxes 7 2 5 9 5
Discontinued operations income (loss), net (6) 9 9 3 23
Net income $ 275 $ 252 $ 232 $ 527 $ 439
Earnings per share
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ .68 $ .59 $ .55 $ 1.27 $ 1.02
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net (.01) .02 .03 .01 .06
Net income $ .67 $ .61 $ .56(a) $ 1.28 $ 1.07(a)
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ .67 $ .58 $ .54 $ 1.25 $ 1.01
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net (.01) .02 .03 .01 .06
Net income $ .66 $ .60 $ .56(a) $ 1.26 $ 1.06(a)
Average shares outstanding (in thousands)
Basic 413,885 412,357 408,154 413,053 408,851
Common stock equivalents 5,412 6,242 4,832 5,977 4,728
Diluted 419,297 418,599 412,986 419,030 413,579
(a) Amounts do not foot due to rounding.
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Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

MELLON FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Supplemental Information

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(dollar amounts in millions, except per share amounts)
June 30,

2007
Dec. 31,

2006

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 2,110 $ 2,854
Interest bearing deposits with banks 4,437 2,409
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 1,381 1,133
Securities:
Held-to-maturity (fair value of $40 and $95) 40 94
Available-for-sale 18,357 18,573
Total securities 18,397 18,667
Trading assets 1,305 1,116
Loans 7,093 5,989
Reserve for loan losses (54) (56)
Net loans 7,039 5,933
Premises and equipment 536 560
Accrued interest receivable 92 98
Goodwill 2,558 2,464
Intangible assets 367 383
Other assets 4,948 4,927
Assets of discontinued operations � 934
Total assets $ 43,170 $ 41,478

Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing (principally domestic offices) $ 8,476 $ 8,288
Interest-bearing deposits in domestic offices 12,448 13,758
Interest-bearing deposits in foreign offices 8,062 5,285
Total deposits 28,986 27,331
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under repurchase agreements 1,328 1,140
Trading liabilities 556 460
Payables to customers and broker-dealers � �
Other borrowed funds 59 91
Accrued taxes and other expenses 1,494 1,843
Other liabilities (including allowance for lending related commitments of $86 and $84) 1,254 852
Long-term debt 4,299 5,053
Liabilities of discontinued operations � 32
Total liabilities 37,976 36,802

Shareholders� equity
Common stock - $.50 par value

  Authorized - 800,000,000 shares, issued � 588,661,920 shares 294 294
Additional paid-in capital 2,065 1,983
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Retained earnings 7,673 7,369
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax (122) (146)
Treasury stock of 170,331,472 and 173,425,195 shares, at cost (4,716) (4,824)
Total shareholders� equity 5,194 4,676
Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 43,170 $ 41,478
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Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Mellon second quarter 2007 overview

Mellon reported income from continuing operations of $281 million, or 67 cents per share, in the second quarter of 2007. Mellon�s results for the
second quarter of 2007 include the impact of pre-tax charges associated with merger and integration expenses ($116 million), early redemption
of junior subordinated debentures ($46 million), exit costs associated with excess office space ($30 million), and a litigation reserve charge
($5 million), as well as the net benefit of a tax settlement and other discrete tax items ($122 million). Together, these amounts reduced earnings
per share for the second quarter of 2007 by approximately two cents. Excluding these amounts, earnings per share from continuing operations in
the second quarter of 2007 was 69 cents and increased 28% compared to income from continuing operations of $223 million, or 54 cents per
share, in the second quarter of 2006. Income from continuing operations was $243 million, or 58 cents per share, in the first quarter of 2007.

Following are second quarter highlights of continuing operations for Mellon. Comparisons are with the second quarter of 2006, unless noted
otherwise.

� Total fee and other revenue amounted to $1.363 billion, an increase of $205 million, or 18%, and represented 91% of total revenue.

� Assets under management increased 23% to a record level of $929 billion at June 30, 2007. Assets under custody and administration
increased 20% to a record level of $5.5 trillion at June 30, 2007. Assets under management increased 5% (unannualized) and assets under
custody and administration increased 5% (unannualized) compared to March 31, 2007.

� Asset and wealth management fees increased 29% to $678 million, a record quarterly level, and increased 4% (unannualized) compared
with the first quarter of 2007. The increase compared with the second quarter of 2006 reflects strong net asset flows over the past
12 months, improved equity markets and acquisitions, as well as a higher yield on average assets under management. Excluding the impact
of acquisitions, asset and wealth management fees increased 22%. In addition, Performance fees amounted to $42 million, a decline of
12% compared to the second quarter of 2006 and an increase of 23% compared to the first quarter of 2007.

� Asset servicing fees, including securities lending revenue, increased 16% to $281 million and increased 12% (unannualized) compared to
the first quarter of 2007. The increase compared to the second quarter of 2006 reflects the impact of net new business, as well as higher
earnings from the ABN AMRO Mellon and CIBC Mellon joint ventures.

� Issuer services fees decreased 11% to $48 million. This decline resulted from a lower level of corporate actions and reimbursable
expenses.

� Foreign exchange and other trading fees decreased 20% to $59 million, and increased 8% (unannualized) compared with the first
quarter of 2007. The second quarter of 2006 was a record quarter given extreme levels of volatility in the markets.

� Investment income totaled $38 million compared to $10 million in the second quarter of 2006 and $25 million in the first quarter of 2007.
The increase compared to both periods principally reflects returns on seed capital investments associated with new product development
for the asset management businesses.
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� Net interest revenue (FTE) totaled $138 million, an increase of 18%, or $22 million, compared with the second quarter of 2006 and 7%,
or $9 million, compared with the first quarter of 2007. The increases reflect higher levels of client deposits as well as the net benefit from
the early redemption of junior subordinated debentures and the reset of adjustable rate securities.

58     The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

Edgar Filing: Bank of New York Mellon CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 95



Table of Contents

Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

� The net interest margin (FTE) for the second quarter of 2007 was 1.80% compared to 1.72% for the second quarter of 2006.

� Total revenue amounted to $1.497 billion (non-FTE), an increase of 18%, or $226 million and an increase of 7% (unannualized)
compared to the first quarter of 2007.

� Total noninterest expense was $1.267 billion. Excluding merger and integration and intangible amortization, noninterest expense was
$1.140 billion, an increase of 20%, or $189 million. In addition, excluding the amounts associated with the early redemption of the
subordinated debentures, exit costs associated with excess real estate and the litigation reserve charge, the total increase was $108 million,
or 12%, compared to the second quarter of 2006. The expense growth was principally in support of new business, acquisitions and merit
increases.

The early redemption of the two series of junior subordinated debentures impacted other expense ($46 million). The exit costs associated with
excess real estate impacted occupancy ($30 million). The litigation charge impacted professional and legal ($5 million).

The merger and integration expenses of $116 million principally included amounts for personnel-related ($62 million), transaction costs
($39 million) and integration/conversion ($14 million).

� Pre-tax margin (FTE) was 16% compared to 26% in the second quarter of 2006. Excluding the impact of the second quarter 2007 items
noted on the previous page, as well as the amortization of intangible assets, the pre-tax margin (FTE) was 30%.

� The effective tax rate was negative 20.6%. Excluding the net tax benefit of $122 million the effective tax rate was 31.7%, compared with
29.3% in the second quarter of 2006. This increase reflects the impact of discrete tax benefits recorded in the second quarter of 2006.

� Return on tangible common equity was 53% in the second quarter of 2007. Excluding the impact of the second quarter 2007 items noted
on the previous page, the return on tangible common equity was 54% compared with 49% in the second quarter of 2006.

� The adjusted tangible shareholders� equity ratio was 5.99% at June 30, 2007 compared to 5.75% at March 31, 2007.

� Average diluted shares totaled 419 million, essentially flat compared with the first quarter of 2007.
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Mellon Financial Corporation - Business segments

Supplemental Information

For the quarter ended

June 30, 2007

(in millions,

presented on

an FTE basis)
Asset

Management
Wealth

Management

Total

Asset &
Wealth

Management
Segment

Asset
Servicing

Issuer
Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 751 $ 109 $ 860 $ 339 $ 50 $ � $ 75 $ 464 $ 49 $ 1,373
Net interest revenue (4) 75 71 32 27 � 30 89 (22) 138
Total revenue 747 184 931 371 77 � 105 553 27 1,511
Provision for credit
losses � � � � � � � � (3) (3)
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 487 108 595 274 56 � 79 409 252 1,256
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) $ 260 $ 76 $ 336 $ 97 $ 21 $ � $ 26 $ 144 $ (222) $ 258
Pre-tax operating
margin (excluding
intangible
amortization) (a) 35% 41% 36% 26% 27% �% 25% 26% N/M 17%
Average assets $ 3,405 $ 10,867 $ 14,272 $ 10,221 $ 2,441 $ � $ 5,937 $ 18,599 $ 9,299 $ 42,707(b)

For the quarter ended

March 31, 2007

(in millions,

presented on

an FTE basis)
Asset

Management
Wealth

Management

Total

Asset &
Wealth

Management
Segment

Asset
Servicing

Issuer
Services

Clearing
&

Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 694 $ 106 $ 800 $ 309 $ 54 $ � $ 75 $ 438 $ 52 $ 1,290
Net interest revenue � 75 75 30 23 � 28 81 (27) 129
Total revenue 694 181 875 339 77 � 103 519 25 1,419
Provision for credit
losses � � � � � � � � 3 3
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible

461 106 567 260 61 � 77 398 71 1,036
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amortization)
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) $ 233 $ 75 $ 308 $ 79 $ 16 $ � $ 26 $ 121 $ (49) $ 380
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) (a) 34% 41% 35% 23% 21% �% 25% 23% N/M 27%
Average assets $ 3,285 $ 11,008 $ 14,293 $ 9,641 $ 2,148 $ � $ 5,952 $ 17,741 $ 8,350 $ 41,042(b)
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Mellon Financial Corporation - Business segments

Supplemental Information

For the quarter ended
Dec. 31, 2006
(in millions,
presented on
an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset &
Wealth

Management
Segment

Asset
Servicing

Issuer
Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 838 $ 106 $ 944 $ 311 $ 47 $ � $ 72 $ 430 $ 48 $ 1,422
Net interest revenue (9) 77 68 22 21 � 25 68 (23) 113
Total revenue 829 183 1,012 333 68 � 97 498 25 1,535
Provision for credit losses � � � � � � � � 5 5
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 533 109 642 278 63 � 77 418 109 1,169
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) $ 296 $ 74 $ 370 $ 55 $ 5 $ � $ 20 $ 80 $ (89) $ 361
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) (a) 36% 40% 37% 17% 7% �% 21% 16% N/M 24%
Average assets $ 3,096 $ 10,760 $ 13,856 $ 10,523 $ 1,974 $ � $ 5,628 $ 18,125 $ 8,061 $ 41,362 (b)

For the quarter ended
Sept. 30, 2006
(in millions,
presented on
an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset &
Wealth

Management
Segment

Asset
Servicing

Issuer
Services

Clearing
&

Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 611 $ 100 $ 711 $ 291 $ 50 $ � $ 70 $ 411 $ 51 $ 1,173
Net interest revenue (3) 77 74 26 18 � 24 68 (19) 123
Total revenue 608 177 785 317 68 � 94 479 32 1,296
Provision for credit losses � � � � � � � � (1) (1)
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 408 103 511 255 56 � 73 384 61 956
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) $ 200 $ 74 $ 274 $ 62 $ 12 $ � $ 21 $ 95 $ (28) $ 341
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) (a) 33% 42% 35% 20% 18% �% 22% 20% N/M 26%
Average assets $ 2,518 $ 10,544 $ 13,062 $ 10,159 $ 1,738 $ � $ 5,355 $ 17,252 $ 9,725 $ 41,447 (b)
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Mellon Financial Corporation - Business segments

Supplemental Information

For the quarter ended
June 30, 2006

(in millions, presented
on an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset &
Wealth

Management
Segment

Asset
Servicing

Issuer
Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 565 $ 100 $ 665 $ 321 $ 56 $ � $ 71 $ 448 $ 54 $ 1,167
Net interest revenue (4) 76 72 25 19 � 26 70 (26) 116
Total revenue 561 176 737 346 75 � 97 518 28 1,283
Provision for credit losses � � � � � � � � (3) (3)
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 391 102 493 257 62 � 72 391 67 951
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) $ 170 $ 74 $ 244 $ 89 $ 13 $ � $ 25 $ 127 $ (36) $ 335
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) (a) 30% 42% 33% 26% 17% �% 26% 25% N/M 26%
Average assets $ 2,362 $ 10,395 $ 12,757 $ 9,248 $ 1,906 $ � $ 5,462 $ 16,616 $ 8,350 $ 39,104(b)
(a) Income before taxes divided by total revenue.
(b) Including average assets of discontinued operations of $537 million, $658 million, $1.320 billion, $1.408 billion and $1.381 billion for the

quarters ended June 30, 2007, March 31, 2007, Dec. 31, 2006, Sept. 30, 2006 and June 30, 2006.

For the six

months ended June 30, 2007
(in millions,
presented on an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset &
Wealth

Management
Segment

Asset
Servicing

Issuer
Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 1,445 $ 215 $ 1,660 $ 648 $ 104 $ � $ 150 $ 902 $ 101 $ 2,663
Net interest revenue (4) 150 146 62 50 � 58 170 (49) 267
Total revenue 1,441 365 1,806 710 154 � 208 1,072 52 2,930
Provision for credit losses � � � � � � � � � �
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 948 214 1,162 534 117 � 156 807 323 2,292
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) $ 493 $ 151 $ 644 $ 176 $ 37 $ � $ 52 $ 265 $ (271) $ 638
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) (a) 34% 41% 36% 25% 24% �% 25% 25% N/M 22%
Average assets $ 3,345 $ 10,937 $ 14,282 $ 9,933 $ 2,296 $ � $ 5,944 $ 18,173 $ 8,839 $ 41,879(b)
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Items 2. and 3. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. (continued)

Mellon Financial Corporation - Business segments

Supplemental Information

For the six months ended

June 30, 2006
(in millions,
presented on
an FTE basis)

Asset
Management

Wealth
Management

Total

Asset &
Wealth

Management
Segment

Asset
Servicing

Issuer
Services

Clearing &
Execution
Services

Treasury
Services

Total
Institutional

Services
Segment

Other
Segment

Total
Continuing
Operations

Fee and other revenue $ 1,123 $ 198 $ 1,321 $ 608 $ 105 $ � $ 143 $ 856 $ 119 $ 2,296
Net interest revenue (2) 149 147 49 37 � 52 138 (45) 240
Total revenue 1,121 347 1,468 657 142 � 195 994 74 2,536
Provision for credit losses � � � � � � � � (2) (2)
Noninterest expense
(excluding intangible
amortization) 778 202 980 497 119 � 144 760 158 1,898
Income before taxes
(excluding intangible
amortization) $ 343 $ 145 $ 488 $ 160 $ 23 $ � $ 51 $ 234 $ (82) $ 640
Pre-tax operating margin
(excluding intangible
amortization) (a) 31% 42% 33% 24% 16% �% 26% 24% N/M 25%
Average assets $ 2,177 $ 10,337 $ 12,514 $ 8,814 $ 1,895 $ � $ 5,564 $ 16,273 $ 8,132 $ 38,314(b)
(a) Income before taxes divided by total revenue.
(b) Including average assets of discontinued operations of $585 million for first six months of 2007 and $1.395 billion for the first six months

of 2006.
Highlights compared with the second quarter of 2006

Asset Management:

� Total asset and wealth management revenue increased 32% reflecting net asset flows, improved equity markets, acquisitions and a
higher yield on average assets under management.

� Distribution and servicing fees increased 21% reflecting higher sales volumes and higher market values of mutual funds.
Wealth Management:

� Total fee and other revenue increased 9% driven by new business and improved market performance, partially offset by the mix in
asset allocation and managed vs. custody-only client assets.

� Net interest revenue decreased 1% as lower spreads on deposits were largely offset by higher loan volumes due to increased business
development.

Asset Servicing:
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� Asset servicing fees increased 12% due primarily to higher earnings from the asset servicing joint ventures, higher market levels and
higher securities lending revenue.

� Foreign exchange and other trading revenue decreased 21% reflecting the record second quarter 2006 given extreme levels of key
currency volatility in the market.

Issuer Services:

� Issuer services fees decreased 11% reflecting lower ancillary services revenue.

� Net interest revenue increased 42% resulting from a 31% increase in deposit levels.
Other Segment:

� Noninterest expense (excluding intangible amortization) increased $185 million due to merger and integration charges ($116 million),
the early redemption charge f

Edgar Filing: Bank of New York Mellon CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 103


